








  PS  Georg Fischer SAS, Villepinte  EUR 1,1  100  C  S

  MS  GF Machining Solutions SAS, Palaiseau  EUR 4,0  100  C  S

Germany  CM  Georg Fischer BV & Co KG, Singen 1  EUR 25,6  100  C  H

  CM  Georg Fischer Geschäftsführungs-GmbH, Singen  EUR 0,1  100  C  M

  CM  Georg Fischer Giessereitechnologie GmbH, Singen  EUR 0,5  100  C  M

  CM  MGH Verwaltungs GmbH, Biedenkop-Wallau  EUR 0,1  51  C  M

  PS  Georg Fischer DEKA GmbH, Dautphetal-Mornshausen  EUR 2,6  100  C  P

  PS  Georg Fischer GmbH, Albershausen  EUR 2,6  100  C  S

  PS  Georg Fischer Fluorpolymer Products GmbH, Ettenheim  EUR 4,0  100  C  P

  PS  Chinaust Automotive GmbH, Düsseldorf  EUR 0,1  50  F  S

  AU  Georg Fischer Automobilguss GmbH, Singen  EUR 12,8  100  C  P

  AU  Georg Fischer GmbH, Mettmann  EUR 0,1  100  C  P

  AU  Georg Fischer GmbH, Leipzig  EUR 0,9  100  C  P

  AU  Georg Fischer GmbH, Werdohl  EUR 0,3  100  C  P

  AU  Georg Fischer Dienstleistungen GmbH, Mettmann  EUR 0,1  100  C  M

  AU  MECO Eckel GmbH & Co KG, Biedenkopf-Wallau  EUR 0,2  51  C  P

  AU  Eckel & Co GmbH, Biedenkopf-Wallau  EUR 0,1  51  C  M

  AU  Georg Fischer Bearbeitung Singen GmbH, Singen  EUR 0,1  100  C  M

  MS  GF Machining Solutions GmbH, Schorndorf  EUR 2,6  100  C  S

Great Britain  PS  George Fischer Sales Ltd, Coventry 1  GBP 4,0  100  C  S

  MS  GF Machining Solutions Ltd, Coventry 1  GBP 2,0  100  C  S

Italy  CM  Georg Fischer Holding Srl, Caselle di Selvazzano 1  EUR 0,5  100  C  H

  PS  Georg Fischer TPA Srl, Busalla  EUR 0,7  100  C  P

  PS  Georg Fischer Omicron Srl, Caselle di Selvazzano  EUR 0,1  100  C  P

  PS  Georg Fischer Pfci Srl, Valeggio sul Mincio  EUR 0,5  100  C  P

  PS  Georg Fischer SpA, Cernusco sul Naviglio  EUR 1,3  100  C  S

  MS  GF Machining Solutions SpA, Cusano Milanino  EUR 3,0  100  C  S

Netherlands  CM  Georg Fischer Holding NV, Epe 1  EUR 0,9  100  C  H

  CM  Georg Fischer Management BV, Epe 1  EUR 0,1  100  C  M

  PS  Georg Fischer NV, Epe  EUR 0,9  100  C  S

  PS  Georg Fischer WAGA NV, Epe  EUR 0,4  100  C  P

Norway  PS  Georg Fischer AS, Rud 1  NOK 1,0  100  C  S

Poland  PS  Georg Fischer Sp.z.o.o., Warszawa 1  PLN 18,5  100  C  S

  MS  GF Machining Solutions Sp.z.o.o., Warszawa 1  PLN 1,3  100  C  S

Spain  PS  Georg Fischer SA, Madrid 1  EUR 1,5  100  C  S

  MS  GF Machining Solutions SAU, Barcelona 1  EUR 2,7  100  C  S

Sweden  PS  Georg Fischer AB, Stockholm 1  SEK 1,6  100  C  S

  MS  System 3R International AB, Vällingby 1  SEK 17,1  100  C  P

Switzerland  CM  WIBILEA AG, Neuhausen 1  CHF 1,0  43  E  M

  CM  Eisenbergwerk Gonzen AG, Sargans 1  CHF 0,5  49  F  M

  CM  Georg Fischer AG, Schaffhausen  CHF 4,1    C  H

  CM  Georg Fischer Liegenschaften AG, Schaffhausen 1  CHF 4,0  100  C  M

  CM  Georg Fischer Finanz AG, Schaffhausen 1  CHF 10,0  100  C  M

  PS  Georg Fischer Rohrleitungssysteme AG, Schaffhausen 1  CHF 20,0  100  C  P

  PS  Georg Fischer Rohrleitungssysteme (Schweiz) AG, Schaffhausen 1  CHF 0,5  100  C  S

  PS  Georg Fischer Wavin AG, Schaffhausen 1  CHF 17,8  60  C  P

  PS  Georg Fischer JRG AG, Sissach 1  CHF 1,8  100  C  P

  AU  Georg Fischer Automotive AG, Schaffhausen 1  CHF 1,0  100  C  M

  MS  Agie Charmilles SA, Losone 1  CHF 10,0  100  C  P

  MS  Agie Charmilles Services SA, Meyrin 1  CHF 3,6  100  C  S

  MS  GF Machining Solutions Management SA, Meyrin 1  CHF 0,5  100  C  M

  MS  GF Machining Solutions International SA, Losone 1  CHF 2,6  100  C  S

  MS  Agie Charmilles New Technologies SA, Meyrin 1  CHF 10,0  100  C  P

  MS  Mecartex SA, Losone  CHF 0,4  30  E  P

  MS  Mikron Agie Charmilles AG, Nidau 1  CHF 3,5  100  C  P

  MS  Step-Tec AG, Luterbach 1  CHF 1,3  98  C  P

  MS  Liechti Engineering AG, Langnau 1  CHF 0,1  100  C  P

               
Near East               

UAE  PS  Georg Fischer Corys LLC, Dubai 1  AED 0,3  49  E  P

Turkey  PS  Georg Fischer Hakan Plastik AS, Cerkezköy 1  TRY 170  100  C  P

  PS  Georg Fischer SAS, Villepinte  EUR 1,1  100  C  S

  MS  GF Machining Solutions SAS, Palaiseau  EUR 4,0  100  C  S

Germany  CM  Georg Fischer BV & Co KG, Singen 1  EUR 25,6  100  C  H

  CM  Georg Fischer Geschäftsführungs-GmbH, Singen  EUR 0,1  100  C  M

  CM  Georg Fischer Giessereitechnologie GmbH, Singen  EUR 0,5  100  C  M

  CM  MGH Verwaltungs GmbH, Biedenkop-Wallau  EUR 0,1  51  C  M

  PS  Georg Fischer DEKA GmbH, Dautphetal-Mornshausen  EUR 2,6  100  C  P

  PS  Georg Fischer GmbH, Albershausen  EUR 2,6  100  C  S

  PS  Georg Fischer Fluorpolymer Products GmbH, Ettenheim  EUR 4,0  100  C  P

  PS  Chinaust Automotive GmbH, Düsseldorf  EUR 0,1  50  F  S

  AU  Georg Fischer Automobilguss GmbH, Singen  EUR 12,8  100  C  P

  AU  Georg Fischer GmbH, Mettmann  EUR 0,1  100  C  P

  AU  Georg Fischer GmbH, Leipzig  EUR 0,9  100  C  P

  AU  Georg Fischer GmbH, Werdohl  EUR 0,3  100  C  P

  AU  Georg Fischer Dienstleistungen GmbH, Mettmann  EUR 0,1  100  C  M

  AU  MECO Eckel GmbH & Co KG, Biedenkopf-Wallau  EUR 0,2  51  C  P

  AU  Eckel & Co GmbH, Biedenkopf-Wallau  EUR 0,1  51  C  M

  AU  Georg Fischer Bearbeitung Singen GmbH, Singen  EUR 0,1  100  C  M

  MS  GF Machining Solutions GmbH, Schorndorf  EUR 2,6  100  C  S

Great Britain  PS  George Fischer Sales Ltd, Coventry 1  GBP 4,0  100  C  S

  MS  GF Machining Solutions Ltd, Coventry 1  GBP 2,0  100  C  S

Italy  CM  Georg Fischer Holding Srl, Caselle di Selvazzano 1  EUR 0,5  100  C  H

  PS  Georg Fischer TPA Srl, Busalla  EUR 0,7  100  C  P

  PS  Georg Fischer Omicron Srl, Caselle di Selvazzano  EUR 0,1  100  C  P

  PS  Georg Fischer Pfci Srl, Valeggio sul Mincio  EUR 0,5  100  C  P

  PS  Georg Fischer SpA, Cernusco sul Naviglio  EUR 1,3  100  C  S

  MS  GF Machining Solutions SpA, Cusano Milanino  EUR 3,0  100  C  S

Netherlands  CM  Georg Fischer Holding NV, Epe 1  EUR 0,9  100  C  H

  CM  Georg Fischer Management BV, Epe 1  EUR 0,1  100  C  M

  PS  Georg Fischer NV, Epe  EUR 0,9  100  C  S

  PS  Georg Fischer WAGA NV, Epe  EUR 0,4  100  C  P

Norway  PS  Georg Fischer AS, Rud 1  NOK 1,0  100  C  S

Poland  PS  Georg Fischer Sp.z.o.o., Warszawa 1  PLN 18,5  100  C  S

  MS  GF Machining Solutions Sp.z.o.o., Warszawa 1  PLN 1,3  100  C  S

Spain  PS  Georg Fischer SA, Madrid 1  EUR 1,5  100  C  S

  MS  GF Machining Solutions SAU, Barcelona 1  EUR 2,7  100  C  S

Sweden  PS  Georg Fischer AB, Stockholm 1  SEK 1,6  100  C  S

  MS  System 3R International AB, Vällingby 1  SEK 17,1  100  C  P

Switzerland  CM  WIBILEA AG, Neuhausen 1  CHF 1,0  43  E  M

  CM  Eisenbergwerk Gonzen AG, Sargans 1  CHF 0,5  49  F  M

  CM  Georg Fischer AG, Schaffhausen  CHF 4,1    C  H

  CM  Georg Fischer Liegenschaften AG, Schaffhausen 1  CHF 4,0  100  C  M

  CM  Georg Fischer Finanz AG, Schaffhausen 1  CHF 10,0  100  C  M

  PS  Georg Fischer Rohrleitungssysteme AG, Schaffhausen 1  CHF 20,0  100  C  P

  PS  Georg Fischer Rohrleitungssysteme (Schweiz) AG, Schaffhausen 1  CHF 0,5  100  C  S

  PS  Georg Fischer Wavin AG, Schaffhausen 1  CHF 17,8  60  C  P

  PS  Georg Fischer JRG AG, Sissach 1  CHF 1,8  100  C  P

  AU  Georg Fischer Automotive AG, Schaffhausen 1  CHF 1,0  100  C  M

  MS  Agie Charmilles SA, Losone 1  CHF 10,0  100  C  P

  MS  Agie Charmilles Services SA, Meyrin 1  CHF 3,6  100  C  S

  MS  GF Machining Solutions Management SA, Meyrin 1  CHF 0,5  100  C  M

  MS  GF Machining Solutions International SA, Losone 1  CHF 2,6  100  C  S

  MS  Agie Charmilles New Technologies SA, Meyrin 1  CHF 10,0  100  C  P

  MS  Mecartex SA, Losone  CHF 0,4  30  E  P

  MS  Mikron Agie Charmilles AG, Nidau 1  CHF 3,5  100  C  P

  MS  Step-Tec AG, Luterbach 1  CHF 1,3  98  C  P

  MS  Liechti Engineering AG, Langnau 1  CHF 0,1  100  C  P

               
Near East               

UAE  PS  Georg Fischer Corys LLC, Dubai 1  AED 0,3  49  E  P

Turkey  PS  Georg Fischer Hakan Plastik AS, Cerkezköy 1  TRY 170  100  C  P

  MS  GF Imalat Cözümleri Ticaret Ltd Sti, Istanbul 1  TRY 0,1  100  E  S

               
Americas               

Argentina  PS  Georg Fischer Central Plastics Sudamerica SRL, Buenos Aires 1  ARS 1,4  100  C  S

  PS  Polytherm Central Sudamericana SA, Buenos Aires  ARS 0,1  49  E  S

Bermuda  CM  Munot Reinsurance Ltd, Hamilton 1  EUR 0,1  100  C  M

Brazil  PS  Georg Fischer Sistemas de Tubulacoes Ltda, São Paulo 1  BRL 7,7  100  C  S

  MS  GF Machining Solutions Máquinas Ltda, São Paulo 1  BRL 60,9  100  C  S

Canada  PS  Georg Fischer Piping Systems Ltd, Mississauga 1  CAD 0,1  100  C  S

Mexico  PS  Georg Fischer SA de CV Mexico, Monterrey 1  MXN 0,1  100  C  S

USA  CM  George Fischer Corporation, El Monte, CA 1  USD 0,1  100  C  H

  CM  Georg Fischer Export Inc, El Monte, CA 1  USD 0,1  100  C  M

  PS  Georg Fischer LLC, Irvine, CA  USD 3,8  100  C  S

  PS  Georg Fischer Signet LLC, El Monte, CA  USD 0,1  100  C  P

  PS  Georg Fischer Central Plastics LLC, Shawnee, OK  USD 1,1  100  C  P

  PS  Georg Fischer Harvel LLC, Easton, PA  USD 0,1  100  C  P

  PS  Chinaust Automotive LLC, Troy, MI  USD 0,1  50  F  S

  AU  GF Linamar LLC, Mills River, NC  USD 1,3  50  C  P

  MS  GF Machining Solutions LLC, Lincolnshire, IL  USD 0,1  100  C  S

  MS  Microlution Inc, Chicago, IL  USD 2,6  100  C  P

               
Asia/Australia           

Australia  CM  George Fischer IPS Pty Ltd, Riverwood 1  AUD 7,1  100  C  H

  PS  George Fischer Pty Ltd, Riverwood  AUD 3,8  100  C  S

China  CM  Georg Fischer Business Services (Shanghai) Co Ltd, Shanghai 1  CNY 1,1  100  C  M

  PS  Changchun Chinaust Automobile Parts Corp Ltd, Changchun  CNY 10,0  50  P  P

  PS  Chinaust Plastics Corp Ltd, Zhuozhou  CNY 100,0  50  P  P

  PS  Chinaust Plastics (Shenzhen) Co Ltd, Shenzhen 1  CNY 80,0  50  P  P

  PS  Chinaust Plastics (Sichuan) Corp Ltd, Dujiangyan 1  CNY 80,0  50  P  P

  PS  Hebei Chinaust Automotive Plastics Corp Ltd, Zhuozhou 1  CNY 58,2  50  P  P

  PS  Shanghai Chinaust Automotive Plastics Corp Ltd, Shanghai 1  CNY 40,3  50  P  P

  PS  Shanghai Chinaust Plastics Corp Ltd, Shanghai  CNY 100,0  50  P  P

  PS  Shanghai Georg Fischer Chinaust Plastics Fittings Corp Ltd, Shanghai 1 CNY 52,0  51  C  P

  PS  Georg Fischer Piping Systems Ltd, Shanghai 1  CNY 41,4  100  C  P

  PS  Georg Fischer Piping Systems (Trading) Ltd, Shanghai 1  CNY 1,7  100  C  S  PS  Georg Fischer Piping Systems (Trading) Ltd, Shanghai 1  CNY 1,7  100  C  S

  PS  Georg Fischer Piping Systems Ltd, Beijing 1  CNY 36,7  100  C  P

  PS  Beijing Jingran Lingyun Gas Equipment Co Ltd, Langfang 1  CNY 6,0  40  Q  P

  PS  Langfang Shuchang Auto Parts Co Ltd, Langfang 1  CNY 10,0  40  Q  P

  PS  Chinaust Plastics Ltd, Xian 1  CNY 36,5  50  Q  P

  AU  Georg Fischer Automotive (Suzhou) Co Ltd, Suzhou 1  CNY 209,5  100  C  P

  AU  Georg Fischer Automotive (Kunshan) Co Ltd, Kunshan 1  CNY 149,5  100  C  P

  MS  GF Machining Solutions Ltd, Hongkong 1  HKD 3,0  100  C  S

  MS  ACM North China (HK) Ltd, Hongkong 1  HKD 0,1  100  C  S

  MS  Agie Charmilles China (HK) Ltd, Hongkong 1  HKD 0,5  100  C  S

  MS  Agie Charmilles China (Shanghai) Co Ltd, Shanghai  CNY 2,5  100  C  S

  MS  Agie Charmilles China (Shenzhen) Ltd, Shenzhen  CNY 2,5  100  C  S

  MS  Agie Charmilles China (Tianjin) Ltd, Tianjin  CNY 1,7  100  C  S

  MS  Beijing Agie Charmilles Industrial Electronics Co Ltd, Beijing 1  CNY 80,3  78  C  P

  MS  Beijing Agie Charmilles Technology & Service Ltd, Beijing  CNY 4,5  78  C  S

  MS  Changzhou Agie Charmilles Machine Tool Co Ltd, Changzhou 1  CNY 55,4  100  C  P

  MS  Liechti (Shanghai) Engineering Co Ltd, Shanghai 1  CNY 0,1  100  F  M

India  PS  Georg Fischer Piping Systems PVT Ltd, Mumbai 1  INR 215,4  100  C  P

Indonesia  PS  PT GF Piping Systems Indonesia, Karawang  USD 14,5  100  C  P

Japan  PS  Georg Fischer Ltd, Osaka 1  JPY 480,0  81  C  S

  MS  GF Machining Solutions Ltd, Yokohama 1  JPY 50,0  100  C  S

Korea  PS  Georg Fischer Korea Co. Ltd., Yongin-si 1  KRW 600,0  100  C  S

  MS  GF Machining Solutions Co Ltd, Seoul 1  KRW 975,0  100  C  S

Malaysia  PS  George Fischer (M) SDN BHD, Shah alam 1  MYR 10,0  100  C  P

New Zealand  PS  Georg Fischer Ltd, Wellington 1  NZD 0,1  100  C  S

Singapore  CM  Eurapipe Holdings Pte Ltd, Singapore 1  SGD 0,1 100 C H

  PS  George Fischer Pte Ltd, Singapore  SGD 3,0  100  C  S

30 Foreign exchange rates

31 Events after the balance sheet date 
The consolidated financial statements were approved and released for publication by the Board of
Directors on 17 February 2017. They must also be approved at the Annual Shareholders’ Meeting.

32 Affiliated Companies

Georg Fischer Ltd in note 6 Compensation and shareholdings.

There were no events between 31 December 2016 and 17 February 2017 that would require an
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities and equity or would need to be disclosed
under this heading.

   Average rates  Spot rates

CHF  2016  2015  2016  2015

          

1 AED  0.268  0.262  0.277  0.270

1 ARS  0.067  0.105  0.064  0.076

1 AUD  0.733  0.725  0.736  0.722

1 BRL  0.284  0.294  0.313  0.254

1 CAD  0.743  0.754  0.757  0.715

1 CNY  0.148  0.153  0.147  0.153

1 EUR  1.090  1.068  1.074  1.083

1 GBP  1.335  1.472  1.254  1.469

1 HKD  0.127  0.124  0.131  0.128

1 INR  0.015  0.015  0.015  0.015

1 MXN  0.053  0.061  0.049  0.057

1 MYR  0.238  0.248  0.227  0.230

1 NZD  0.687  0.674  0.708  0.679

1 SGD  0.713  0.700  0.705  0.701

1 TRY  0.327  0.356  0.290  0.340

1 USD  0.985  0.963  1.019  0.991

100 CZK  4.032  3.915  3.974  4.004

100 DKK  14.639  14.324  14.445  14.505

100 JPY  0.907  0.796  0.870  0.822

100 KRW  0.085  0.085  0.085  0.084

100 NOK  11.724  11.944  11.819  11.315

100 PLN  24.975  25.550  24.350  25.506

100 SEK  11.518  11.416  11.242  11.803

100 THB  2.791  2.816  2.847  2.744

100 TWD  3.056  3.033  3.143  3.009

Country  Division Company  

Func-
tional

currency 

Share
capital
million  

Partici-
pation

%  

Con-
soli-

dation  
Func-

tion

Europe               

Austria  PS  Georg Fischer Fittings GmbH, Traisen  EUR 3,7  51  C  P

  PS  Georg Fischer Rohrleitungssysteme GmbH, Herzogenburg  EUR 0,2  100  C  S

  AU  Georg Fischer Automobilguss GmbH, Herzogenburg 1  EUR 4,6  100  C  H

  AU  Georg Fischer Druckguss GmbH, Herzogenburg  EUR 0,1  100  C  P

  AU  Georg Fischer Eisenguss GmbH, Herzogenburg  EUR 0,1  100  C  P

  AU  Georg Fischer GmbH & Co KG, Altenmarkt  EUR 2,4  100  C  P

  AU  Georg Fischer GmbH, Altenmarkt  EUR 0,1  100  C  M

Belgium  PS  Georg Fischer NV-SA, Bruxelles 1  EUR 0,5  100  C  S

Czech  MS  GF Machining Solutions sro, Brno 1  CZK 12,3  100  C  S

Denmark  PS  Georg Fischer A/S, Taastrup 1  DKK 0,5  100  C  S

France  CM  Georg Fischer Holding SAS, Palaiseau 1  EUR 6,4  100  C  H
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1 Directly held by Georg Fischer Ltd.

Division
CM = Corporate Management
PS = GF Piping Systems
AU = GF Automotive
MS = GF Machining Solutions

Consolidation
C = Fully consolidated
P = Proportionately consolidated
E = Stated based on the equity method
F = Stated at estimated fair value

Function
H = Holding
P = Production
M = Management and Services
S = Sales

Status as of 31  December 2016

  MS  GF Machining Solutions Pte Ltd, Singapore  SGD 2,1  100  C  S

Taiwan  PS  Georg Fischer Co Ltd, New Taipei City 1  TWD 1,0  100  C  S

  MS  GF Machining Solutions Ltd, San Chung, Taipei Hsien 1  TWD 10,0  100  C  S

Vietnam  MS  GF Machining Solutions Co Ltd, Hanoi 1  VND 5000,0  100  F  S

Consolidated financial statements 

Report of the statutory auditor to 
the Annual Shareholders’ Meeting of 
Georg Fischer Ltd, Schaffhausen

Report on the audit of the consolidated financial statements

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Georg Fischer Ltd and its subsidiaries (the
Group), which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2016,  consolidated income
statement,  consolidated statement of changes in equity,  consolidated cash flow statement  for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the
consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2016 and its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Swiss GAAP FER
and comply with Swiss law.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Swiss law and Swiss Auditing Standards. Our responsibilities
under those provisions and standards are further described in the “Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit
of the consolidated financial statements” section of our report.

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the provisions of Swiss law and the requirements of
the Swiss audit profession and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Our audit approach
Overview

Audit scope

The Group is structured along three divisional lines, GF Piping Systems, GF Automotive and GF Machining
Solutions, operating across three key geographical locations – Europe, North & South America and Asia.
The Group’s financial statements are a consolidation of 131 reporting units, each of which, including both
the Group’s operating businesses and the central service functions, is considered a component.

In six countries, we identified 46 reporting units that, in our view, required a full scope audit and three
reporting units that required specific procedures due to their size or risk characteristics. These full scope
audits addressed over 70% of the Group’s revenue and 72% of the Group’s total assets, while the specific
procedures addressed 7% of the Group’s revenue and 3% of the Group’s total assets.

The remaining 23% of the Group’s revenue and 25% of the Group’s total assets was represented by a
large number of smaller reporting units. None of these reporting units individually contributed more than

  MS  GF Imalat Cözümleri Ticaret Ltd Sti, Istanbul 1  TRY 0,1  100  E  S

               
Americas               

Argentina  PS  Georg Fischer Central Plastics Sudamerica SRL, Buenos Aires 1  ARS 1,4  100  C  S

  PS  Polytherm Central Sudamericana SA, Buenos Aires  ARS 0,1  49  E  S

Bermuda  CM  Munot Reinsurance Ltd, Hamilton 1  EUR 0,1  100  C  M

Brazil  PS  Georg Fischer Sistemas de Tubulacoes Ltda, São Paulo 1  BRL 7,7  100  C  S

  MS  GF Machining Solutions Máquinas Ltda, São Paulo 1  BRL 60,9  100  C  S

Canada  PS  Georg Fischer Piping Systems Ltd, Mississauga 1  CAD 0,1  100  C  S

Mexico  PS  Georg Fischer SA de CV Mexico, Monterrey 1  MXN 0,1  100  C  S

USA  CM  George Fischer Corporation, El Monte, CA 1  USD 0,1  100  C  H

  CM  Georg Fischer Export Inc, El Monte, CA 1  USD 0,1  100  C  M

  PS  Georg Fischer LLC, Irvine, CA  USD 3,8  100  C  S

  PS  Georg Fischer Signet LLC, El Monte, CA  USD 0,1  100  C  P

  PS  Georg Fischer Central Plastics LLC, Shawnee, OK  USD 1,1  100  C  P

  PS  Georg Fischer Harvel LLC, Easton, PA  USD 0,1  100  C  P

  PS  Chinaust Automotive LLC, Troy, MI  USD 0,1  50  F  S

  AU  GF Linamar LLC, Mills River, NC  USD 1,3  50  C  P

  MS  GF Machining Solutions LLC, Lincolnshire, IL  USD 0,1  100  C  S

  MS  Microlution Inc, Chicago, IL  USD 2,6  100  C  P

               
Asia/Australia           

Australia  CM  George Fischer IPS Pty Ltd, Riverwood 1  AUD 7,1  100  C  H

  PS  George Fischer Pty Ltd, Riverwood  AUD 3,8  100  C  S

China  CM  Georg Fischer Business Services (Shanghai) Co Ltd, Shanghai 1  CNY 1,1  100  C  M

  PS  Changchun Chinaust Automobile Parts Corp Ltd, Changchun  CNY 10,0  50  P  P

  PS  Chinaust Plastics Corp Ltd, Zhuozhou  CNY 100,0  50  P  P

  PS  Chinaust Plastics (Shenzhen) Co Ltd, Shenzhen 1  CNY 80,0  50  P  P

  PS  Chinaust Plastics (Sichuan) Corp Ltd, Dujiangyan 1  CNY 80,0  50  P  P

  PS  Hebei Chinaust Automotive Plastics Corp Ltd, Zhuozhou 1  CNY 58,2  50  P  P

  PS  Shanghai Chinaust Automotive Plastics Corp Ltd, Shanghai 1  CNY 40,3  50  P  P

  PS  Shanghai Chinaust Plastics Corp Ltd, Shanghai  CNY 100,0  50  P  P

  PS  Shanghai Georg Fischer Chinaust Plastics Fittings Corp Ltd, Shanghai 1 CNY 52,0  51  C  P

  PS  Georg Fischer Piping Systems Ltd, Shanghai 1  CNY 41,4  100  C  P

  PS  Georg Fischer Piping Systems (Trading) Ltd, Shanghai 1  CNY 1,7  100  C  S  PS  Georg Fischer Piping Systems (Trading) Ltd, Shanghai 1  CNY 1,7  100  C  S

  PS  Georg Fischer Piping Systems Ltd, Beijing 1  CNY 36,7  100  C  P

  PS  Beijing Jingran Lingyun Gas Equipment Co Ltd, Langfang 1  CNY 6,0  40  Q  P

  PS  Langfang Shuchang Auto Parts Co Ltd, Langfang 1  CNY 10,0  40  Q  P

  PS  Chinaust Plastics Ltd, Xian 1  CNY 36,5  50  Q  P

  AU  Georg Fischer Automotive (Suzhou) Co Ltd, Suzhou 1  CNY 209,5  100  C  P

  AU  Georg Fischer Automotive (Kunshan) Co Ltd, Kunshan 1  CNY 149,5  100  C  P

  MS  GF Machining Solutions Ltd, Hongkong 1  HKD 3,0  100  C  S

  MS  ACM North China (HK) Ltd, Hongkong 1  HKD 0,1  100  C  S

  MS  Agie Charmilles China (HK) Ltd, Hongkong 1  HKD 0,5  100  C  S

  MS  Agie Charmilles China (Shanghai) Co Ltd, Shanghai  CNY 2,5  100  C  S

  MS  Agie Charmilles China (Shenzhen) Ltd, Shenzhen  CNY 2,5  100  C  S

  MS  Agie Charmilles China (Tianjin) Ltd, Tianjin  CNY 1,7  100  C  S

  MS  Beijing Agie Charmilles Industrial Electronics Co Ltd, Beijing 1  CNY 80,3  78  C  P

  MS  Beijing Agie Charmilles Technology & Service Ltd, Beijing  CNY 4,5  78  C  S

  MS  Changzhou Agie Charmilles Machine Tool Co Ltd, Changzhou 1  CNY 55,4  100  C  P

  MS  Liechti (Shanghai) Engineering Co Ltd, Shanghai 1  CNY 0,1  100  F  M

India  PS  Georg Fischer Piping Systems PVT Ltd, Mumbai 1  INR 215,4  100  C  P

Indonesia  PS  PT GF Piping Systems Indonesia, Karawang  USD 14,5  100  C  P

Japan  PS  Georg Fischer Ltd, Osaka 1  JPY 480,0  81  C  S

  MS  GF Machining Solutions Ltd, Yokohama 1  JPY 50,0  100  C  S

Korea  PS  Georg Fischer Korea Co. Ltd., Yongin-si 1  KRW 600,0  100  C  S

  MS  GF Machining Solutions Co Ltd, Seoul 1  KRW 975,0  100  C  S

Malaysia  PS  George Fischer (M) SDN BHD, Shah alam 1  MYR 10,0  100  C  P

New Zealand  PS  Georg Fischer Ltd, Wellington 1  NZD 0,1  100  C  S

Singapore  CM  Eurapipe Holdings Pte Ltd, Singapore 1  SGD 0,1 100 C H

  PS  George Fischer Pte Ltd, Singapore  SGD 3,0  100  C  S
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Consolidated financial statements 

1 Directly held by Georg Fischer Ltd.

Division
CM = Corporate Management
PS = GF Piping Systems
AU = GF Automotive
MS = GF Machining Solutions

Consolidation
C = Fully consolidated
P = Proportionately consolidated
E = Stated based on the equity method
F = Stated at estimated fair value

Function
H = Holding
P = Production
M = Management and Services
S = Sales

Status as of 31  December 2016

  MS  GF Machining Solutions Pte Ltd, Singapore  SGD 2,1  100  C  S

Taiwan  PS  Georg Fischer Co Ltd, New Taipei City 1  TWD 1,0  100  C  S

  MS  GF Machining Solutions Ltd, San Chung, Taipei Hsien 1  TWD 10,0  100  C  S

Vietnam  MS  GF Machining Solutions Co Ltd, Hanoi 1  VND 5000,0  100  F  S

Consolidated financial statements 

Report of the statutory auditor to 
the Annual Shareholders’ Meeting of 
Georg Fischer Ltd, Schaffhausen

Report on the audit of the consolidated financial statements

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Georg Fischer Ltd and its subsidiaries (the
Group), which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2016,  consolidated income
statement,  consolidated statement of changes in equity,  consolidated cash flow statement  for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the
consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2016 and its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Swiss GAAP FER
and comply with Swiss law.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Swiss law and Swiss Auditing Standards. Our responsibilities
under those provisions and standards are further described in the “Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit
of the consolidated financial statements” section of our report.

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the provisions of Swiss law and the requirements of
the Swiss audit profession and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Our audit approach
Overview

Audit scope

The Group is structured along three divisional lines, GF Piping Systems, GF Automotive and GF Machining
Solutions, operating across three key geographical locations – Europe, North & South America and Asia.
The Group’s financial statements are a consolidation of 131 reporting units, each of which, including both
the Group’s operating businesses and the central service functions, is considered a component.

In six countries, we identified 46 reporting units that, in our view, required a full scope audit and three
reporting units that required specific procedures due to their size or risk characteristics. These full scope
audits addressed over 70% of the Group’s revenue and 72% of the Group’s total assets, while the specific
procedures addressed 7% of the Group’s revenue and 3% of the Group’s total assets.

The remaining 23% of the Group’s revenue and 25% of the Group’s total assets was represented by a
large number of smaller reporting units. None of these reporting units individually contributed more than

  MS  GF Imalat Cözümleri Ticaret Ltd Sti, Istanbul 1  TRY 0,1  100  E  S

               
Americas               

Argentina  PS  Georg Fischer Central Plastics Sudamerica SRL, Buenos Aires 1  ARS 1,4  100  C  S

  PS  Polytherm Central Sudamericana SA, Buenos Aires  ARS 0,1  49  E  S

Bermuda  CM  Munot Reinsurance Ltd, Hamilton 1  EUR 0,1  100  C  M

Brazil  PS  Georg Fischer Sistemas de Tubulacoes Ltda, São Paulo 1  BRL 7,7  100  C  S

  MS  GF Machining Solutions Máquinas Ltda, São Paulo 1  BRL 60,9  100  C  S

Canada  PS  Georg Fischer Piping Systems Ltd, Mississauga 1  CAD 0,1  100  C  S

Mexico  PS  Georg Fischer SA de CV Mexico, Monterrey 1  MXN 0,1  100  C  S

USA  CM  George Fischer Corporation, El Monte, CA 1  USD 0,1  100  C  H

  CM  Georg Fischer Export Inc, El Monte, CA 1  USD 0,1  100  C  M

  PS  Georg Fischer LLC, Irvine, CA  USD 3,8  100  C  S

  PS  Georg Fischer Signet LLC, El Monte, CA  USD 0,1  100  C  P

  PS  Georg Fischer Central Plastics LLC, Shawnee, OK  USD 1,1  100  C  P

  PS  Georg Fischer Harvel LLC, Easton, PA  USD 0,1  100  C  P

  PS  Chinaust Automotive LLC, Troy, MI  USD 0,1  50  F  S

  AU  GF Linamar LLC, Mills River, NC  USD 1,3  50  C  P

  MS  GF Machining Solutions LLC, Lincolnshire, IL  USD 0,1  100  C  S

  MS  Microlution Inc, Chicago, IL  USD 2,6  100  C  P

               
Asia/Australia           

Australia  CM  George Fischer IPS Pty Ltd, Riverwood 1  AUD 7,1  100  C  H

  PS  George Fischer Pty Ltd, Riverwood  AUD 3,8  100  C  S

China  CM  Georg Fischer Business Services (Shanghai) Co Ltd, Shanghai 1  CNY 1,1  100  C  M

  PS  Changchun Chinaust Automobile Parts Corp Ltd, Changchun  CNY 10,0  50  P  P

  PS  Chinaust Plastics Corp Ltd, Zhuozhou  CNY 100,0  50  P  P

  PS  Chinaust Plastics (Shenzhen) Co Ltd, Shenzhen 1  CNY 80,0  50  P  P

  PS  Chinaust Plastics (Sichuan) Corp Ltd, Dujiangyan 1  CNY 80,0  50  P  P

  PS  Hebei Chinaust Automotive Plastics Corp Ltd, Zhuozhou 1  CNY 58,2  50  P  P

  PS  Shanghai Chinaust Automotive Plastics Corp Ltd, Shanghai 1  CNY 40,3  50  P  P

  PS  Shanghai Chinaust Plastics Corp Ltd, Shanghai  CNY 100,0  50  P  P

  PS  Shanghai Georg Fischer Chinaust Plastics Fittings Corp Ltd, Shanghai 1 CNY 52,0  51  C  P

  PS  Georg Fischer Piping Systems Ltd, Shanghai 1  CNY 41,4  100  C  P

  PS  Georg Fischer Piping Systems (Trading) Ltd, Shanghai 1  CNY 1,7  100  C  S  PS  Georg Fischer Piping Systems (Trading) Ltd, Shanghai 1  CNY 1,7  100  C  S

  PS  Georg Fischer Piping Systems Ltd, Beijing 1  CNY 36,7  100  C  P

  PS  Beijing Jingran Lingyun Gas Equipment Co Ltd, Langfang 1  CNY 6,0  40  Q  P

  PS  Langfang Shuchang Auto Parts Co Ltd, Langfang 1  CNY 10,0  40  Q  P

  PS  Chinaust Plastics Ltd, Xian 1  CNY 36,5  50  Q  P

  AU  Georg Fischer Automotive (Suzhou) Co Ltd, Suzhou 1  CNY 209,5  100  C  P

  AU  Georg Fischer Automotive (Kunshan) Co Ltd, Kunshan 1  CNY 149,5  100  C  P

  MS  GF Machining Solutions Ltd, Hongkong 1  HKD 3,0  100  C  S

  MS  ACM North China (HK) Ltd, Hongkong 1  HKD 0,1  100  C  S

  MS  Agie Charmilles China (HK) Ltd, Hongkong 1  HKD 0,5  100  C  S

  MS  Agie Charmilles China (Shanghai) Co Ltd, Shanghai  CNY 2,5  100  C  S

  MS  Agie Charmilles China (Shenzhen) Ltd, Shenzhen  CNY 2,5  100  C  S

  MS  Agie Charmilles China (Tianjin) Ltd, Tianjin  CNY 1,7  100  C  S

  MS  Beijing Agie Charmilles Industrial Electronics Co Ltd, Beijing 1  CNY 80,3  78  C  P

  MS  Beijing Agie Charmilles Technology & Service Ltd, Beijing  CNY 4,5  78  C  S

  MS  Changzhou Agie Charmilles Machine Tool Co Ltd, Changzhou 1  CNY 55,4  100  C  P

  MS  Liechti (Shanghai) Engineering Co Ltd, Shanghai 1  CNY 0,1  100  F  M

India  PS  Georg Fischer Piping Systems PVT Ltd, Mumbai 1  INR 215,4  100  C  P

Indonesia  PS  PT GF Piping Systems Indonesia, Karawang  USD 14,5  100  C  P

Japan  PS  Georg Fischer Ltd, Osaka 1  JPY 480,0  81  C  S

  MS  GF Machining Solutions Ltd, Yokohama 1  JPY 50,0  100  C  S

Korea  PS  Georg Fischer Korea Co. Ltd., Yongin-si 1  KRW 600,0  100  C  S

  MS  GF Machining Solutions Co Ltd, Seoul 1  KRW 975,0  100  C  S

Malaysia  PS  George Fischer (M) SDN BHD, Shah alam 1  MYR 10,0  100  C  P

New Zealand  PS  Georg Fischer Ltd, Wellington 1  NZD 0,1  100  C  S

Singapore  CM  Eurapipe Holdings Pte Ltd, Singapore 1  SGD 0,1 100 C H

  PS  George Fischer Pte Ltd, Singapore  SGD 3,0  100  C  S
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2% to consolidated revenue or total assets.

Where the work was performed by component auditors, we determined the necessary level of our
involvement in the audit work, which consisted of either visiting component audit teams, inspecting the
work performed by them, conducting planning and closing calls, or reviewing their final reporting.

Where component audits were conducted by an auditor outside of PwC, the work performed was discussed
and reviewed by PwC on a sample basis.

Further specific audit procedures on central service functions, the Group consolidation and areas of
significant judgement (including M&A transactions, taxation, treasury and litigation) were led by the
Group audit team.

Not considered in the above coverage is our audit evidence from performing audit work at Group level,
including testing of monitoring controls and disaggregated analytical review procedures, which covers a
significant portion of the Group’s smaller and lower-risk components that were not included directly in
our Group audit scope.

Materiality

The scope of our audit was influenced by our application of materiality. Our audit opinion aims to provide
reasonable assurance that the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.
Misstatements may arise due to fraud or error. They are considered material if individually or in
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of the consolidated financial statements.

Based on our professional judgement, we determined certain quantitative thresholds for materiality,
including the overall Group materiality for the consolidated financial statements as a whole as set out in
the table below. These, together with qualitative considerations, helped us to determine the scope of our
audit and the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures and to evaluate the effect of
misstatements, both individually and in aggregate, on the consolidated financial statements as a whole.

We agreed with the Audit Committee that we would report to them misstatements above CHF one million
identified during our audit as well as any misstatements below that amount which, in our view, warranted
reporting for qualitative reasons.

Report on key audit matters based on the circular 1/2015 of the Federal Audit Oversight
Authority

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

   

Overall materiality  CHF 14 million

How we determined it  5% of profit before taxes

Rationale for the materialitybenchmark
applied  

We chose profit before taxes as the benchmark because, in our view, it is the benchmark against which
the performance of the Group is most commonly measured, and it is a generally accepted benchmark.

Revenue recognition in the GF Machining Solutions division

Responsibilities of the Board of Directors for the consolidated financial statements

The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with Swiss GAAP FER and the provisions of Swiss law, and for
such internal control as the Board of Directors determines is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors intends either to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Swiss law and Swiss Auditing Standards will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements is
located at the website of EXPERTsuisse: → http://expertsuisse.ch/en/audit-report-for-public-
companies. This description forms part of our auditor’s report.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

In accordance with article 728a paragraph 1 item 3 CO and Swiss Auditing Standard 890, we confirm that
an internal control system exists which has been designed for the preparation of consolidated financial
statements according to the instructions of the Board of Directors.

We recommend that the consolidated financial statements submitted to you be approved.

   

Key audit matter  How our audit addressed the key audit matter

As set out in the segment information, the GF Machining Solutions division
recorded revenues of CHF 916 million. The Group’s accounting principles for
sales and revenue recognition are described in the corporate accounting
principles.

We focused on revenue recognition in the GF Machining Solutions division
because of the use of multiple element contracts. Multiple element
contracts require a thorough assessment of revenue recognition in the
income statement as they have a higher inherent risk due to their complexity.
This concerns in particular the accounting for transactions where different
elements – machines, maintenance and support, as well as financing – are
sold together. 

The complexity of multiple element contracts relates to the allocation of
revenues to the individual elements and the timing of their recognition.

 

We focussed on whether the revenues allocated to the machines,
maintenance, support and financing elements were recorded based
on the corresponding contractual agreements and in accordance
with the Group’s accounting principles. 

In this context, it should be noted that Georg Fischer has updated the
relevant sections of the Group’s accounting principles. We confirmed
that this complies with the latest revisions to Swiss GAAP FER.

We re-performed the calculations to allocate the revenues to the
various elements of such transactions. Where discounts had been
agreed with customers, we tested whether they had been allocated
based on the corresponding fair values.

We also tested transactions to ensure that the amount of revenue
deferred was accurately calculated and appropriately recognised.
This involved reconciling the revenue from maintenance and support
services and from financing elements with the figures derived from
calculations based on the contractual terms and conditions.

In addition, we tested whether each single element of the multiple
element contract was recorded in the appropriate period.

Further, where revenue was recorded through manual journal
entries, we performed tests to establish whether the sale had
occurred or the service had been provided in the financial year in
order to support the revenue recognition. 

We obtained sufficient audit evidence to address the risk of revenue
recognition in the GF Machining Solutions division.

Consolidated financial statements 

Report of the statutory auditor to 
the Annual Shareholders’ Meeting of 
Georg Fischer Ltd, Schaffhausen

Report on the audit of the consolidated financial statements

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Georg Fischer Ltd and its subsidiaries (the
Group), which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2016,  consolidated income
statement,  consolidated statement of changes in equity,  consolidated cash flow statement  for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the
consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2016 and its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Swiss GAAP FER
and comply with Swiss law.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Swiss law and Swiss Auditing Standards. Our responsibilities
under those provisions and standards are further described in the “Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit
of the consolidated financial statements” section of our report.

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the provisions of Swiss law and the requirements of
the Swiss audit profession and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Our audit approach
Overview

Audit scope

The Group is structured along three divisional lines, GF Piping Systems, GF Automotive and GF Machining
Solutions, operating across three key geographical locations – Europe, North & South America and Asia.
The Group’s financial statements are a consolidation of 131 reporting units, each of which, including both
the Group’s operating businesses and the central service functions, is considered a component.

In six countries, we identified 46 reporting units that, in our view, required a full scope audit and three
reporting units that required specific procedures due to their size or risk characteristics. These full scope
audits addressed over 70% of the Group’s revenue and 72% of the Group’s total assets, while the specific
procedures addressed 7% of the Group’s revenue and 3% of the Group’s total assets.

The remaining 23% of the Group’s revenue and 25% of the Group’s total assets was represented by a
large number of smaller reporting units. None of these reporting units individually contributed more than
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2% to consolidated revenue or total assets.

Where the work was performed by component auditors, we determined the necessary level of our
involvement in the audit work, which consisted of either visiting component audit teams, inspecting the
work performed by them, conducting planning and closing calls, or reviewing their final reporting.

Where component audits were conducted by an auditor outside of PwC, the work performed was discussed
and reviewed by PwC on a sample basis.

Further specific audit procedures on central service functions, the Group consolidation and areas of
significant judgement (including M&A transactions, taxation, treasury and litigation) were led by the
Group audit team.

Not considered in the above coverage is our audit evidence from performing audit work at Group level,
including testing of monitoring controls and disaggregated analytical review procedures, which covers a
significant portion of the Group’s smaller and lower-risk components that were not included directly in
our Group audit scope.

Materiality

The scope of our audit was influenced by our application of materiality. Our audit opinion aims to provide
reasonable assurance that the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.
Misstatements may arise due to fraud or error. They are considered material if individually or in
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of the consolidated financial statements.

Based on our professional judgement, we determined certain quantitative thresholds for materiality,
including the overall Group materiality for the consolidated financial statements as a whole as set out in
the table below. These, together with qualitative considerations, helped us to determine the scope of our
audit and the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures and to evaluate the effect of
misstatements, both individually and in aggregate, on the consolidated financial statements as a whole.

We agreed with the Audit Committee that we would report to them misstatements above CHF one million
identified during our audit as well as any misstatements below that amount which, in our view, warranted
reporting for qualitative reasons.

Report on key audit matters based on the circular 1/2015 of the Federal Audit Oversight
Authority

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

   

Overall materiality  CHF 14 million

How we determined it  5% of profit before taxes

Rationale for the materialitybenchmark
applied  

We chose profit before taxes as the benchmark because, in our view, it is the benchmark against which
the performance of the Group is most commonly measured, and it is a generally accepted benchmark.

Revenue recognition in the GF Machining Solutions division

Responsibilities of the Board of Directors for the consolidated financial statements

The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with Swiss GAAP FER and the provisions of Swiss law, and for
such internal control as the Board of Directors determines is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors intends either to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Swiss law and Swiss Auditing Standards will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements is
located at the website of EXPERTsuisse: → http://expertsuisse.ch/en/audit-report-for-public-
companies. This description forms part of our auditor’s report.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

In accordance with article 728a paragraph 1 item 3 CO and Swiss Auditing Standard 890, we confirm that
an internal control system exists which has been designed for the preparation of consolidated financial
statements according to the instructions of the Board of Directors.

We recommend that the consolidated financial statements submitted to you be approved.

   

Key audit matter  How our audit addressed the key audit matter

As set out in the segment information, the GF Machining Solutions division
recorded revenues of CHF 916 million. The Group’s accounting principles for
sales and revenue recognition are described in the corporate accounting
principles.

We focused on revenue recognition in the GF Machining Solutions division
because of the use of multiple element contracts. Multiple element
contracts require a thorough assessment of revenue recognition in the
income statement as they have a higher inherent risk due to their complexity.
This concerns in particular the accounting for transactions where different
elements – machines, maintenance and support, as well as financing – are
sold together. 

The complexity of multiple element contracts relates to the allocation of
revenues to the individual elements and the timing of their recognition.

 

We focussed on whether the revenues allocated to the machines,
maintenance, support and financing elements were recorded based
on the corresponding contractual agreements and in accordance
with the Group’s accounting principles. 

In this context, it should be noted that Georg Fischer has updated the
relevant sections of the Group’s accounting principles. We confirmed
that this complies with the latest revisions to Swiss GAAP FER.

We re-performed the calculations to allocate the revenues to the
various elements of such transactions. Where discounts had been
agreed with customers, we tested whether they had been allocated
based on the corresponding fair values.

We also tested transactions to ensure that the amount of revenue
deferred was accurately calculated and appropriately recognised.
This involved reconciling the revenue from maintenance and support
services and from financing elements with the figures derived from
calculations based on the contractual terms and conditions.

In addition, we tested whether each single element of the multiple
element contract was recorded in the appropriate period.

Further, where revenue was recorded through manual journal
entries, we performed tests to establish whether the sale had
occurred or the service had been provided in the financial year in
order to support the revenue recognition. 

We obtained sufficient audit evidence to address the risk of revenue
recognition in the GF Machining Solutions division.

Consolidated financial statements 

Report of the statutory auditor to 
the Annual Shareholders’ Meeting of 
Georg Fischer Ltd, Schaffhausen

Report on the audit of the consolidated financial statements

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Georg Fischer Ltd and its subsidiaries (the
Group), which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2016,  consolidated income
statement,  consolidated statement of changes in equity,  consolidated cash flow statement  for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the
consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2016 and its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Swiss GAAP FER
and comply with Swiss law.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Swiss law and Swiss Auditing Standards. Our responsibilities
under those provisions and standards are further described in the “Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit
of the consolidated financial statements” section of our report.

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the provisions of Swiss law and the requirements of
the Swiss audit profession and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Our audit approach
Overview

Audit scope

The Group is structured along three divisional lines, GF Piping Systems, GF Automotive and GF Machining
Solutions, operating across three key geographical locations – Europe, North & South America and Asia.
The Group’s financial statements are a consolidation of 131 reporting units, each of which, including both
the Group’s operating businesses and the central service functions, is considered a component.

In six countries, we identified 46 reporting units that, in our view, required a full scope audit and three
reporting units that required specific procedures due to their size or risk characteristics. These full scope
audits addressed over 70% of the Group’s revenue and 72% of the Group’s total assets, while the specific
procedures addressed 7% of the Group’s revenue and 3% of the Group’s total assets.

The remaining 23% of the Group’s revenue and 25% of the Group’s total assets was represented by a
large number of smaller reporting units. None of these reporting units individually contributed more than
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Financial statements Georg Fischer Ltd

Revenue recognition in the GF Machining Solutions division

Responsibilities of the Board of Directors for the consolidated financial statements

The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with Swiss GAAP FER and the provisions of Swiss law, and for
such internal control as the Board of Directors determines is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors intends either to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Swiss law and Swiss Auditing Standards will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements is
located at the website of EXPERTsuisse: → http://expertsuisse.ch/en/audit-report-for-public-
companies. This description forms part of our auditor’s report.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

In accordance with article 728a paragraph 1 item 3 CO and Swiss Auditing Standard 890, we confirm that
an internal control system exists which has been designed for the preparation of consolidated financial
statements according to the instructions of the Board of Directors.

We recommend that the consolidated financial statements submitted to you be approved.

   

Key audit matter  How our audit addressed the key audit matter

As set out in the segment information, the GF Machining Solutions division
recorded revenues of CHF 916 million. The Group’s accounting principles for
sales and revenue recognition are described in the corporate accounting
principles.

We focused on revenue recognition in the GF Machining Solutions division
because of the use of multiple element contracts. Multiple element
contracts require a thorough assessment of revenue recognition in the
income statement as they have a higher inherent risk due to their complexity.
This concerns in particular the accounting for transactions where different
elements – machines, maintenance and support, as well as financing – are
sold together. 

The complexity of multiple element contracts relates to the allocation of
revenues to the individual elements and the timing of their recognition.

 

We focussed on whether the revenues allocated to the machines,
maintenance, support and financing elements were recorded based
on the corresponding contractual agreements and in accordance
with the Group’s accounting principles. 

In this context, it should be noted that Georg Fischer has updated the
relevant sections of the Group’s accounting principles. We confirmed
that this complies with the latest revisions to Swiss GAAP FER.

We re-performed the calculations to allocate the revenues to the
various elements of such transactions. Where discounts had been
agreed with customers, we tested whether they had been allocated
based on the corresponding fair values.

We also tested transactions to ensure that the amount of revenue
deferred was accurately calculated and appropriately recognised.
This involved reconciling the revenue from maintenance and support
services and from financing elements with the figures derived from
calculations based on the contractual terms and conditions.

In addition, we tested whether each single element of the multiple
element contract was recorded in the appropriate period.

Further, where revenue was recorded through manual journal
entries, we performed tests to establish whether the sale had
occurred or the service had been provided in the financial year in
order to support the revenue recognition. 

We obtained sufficient audit evidence to address the risk of revenue
recognition in the GF Machining Solutions division.
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Financial statements Georg Fischer Ltd

Revenue recognition in the GF Machining Solutions division

Responsibilities of the Board of Directors for the consolidated financial statements

The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with Swiss GAAP FER and the provisions of Swiss law, and for
such internal control as the Board of Directors determines is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors intends either to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Swiss law and Swiss Auditing Standards will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements is
located at the website of EXPERTsuisse: → http://expertsuisse.ch/en/audit-report-for-public-
companies. This description forms part of our auditor’s report.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

In accordance with article 728a paragraph 1 item 3 CO and Swiss Auditing Standard 890, we confirm that
an internal control system exists which has been designed for the preparation of consolidated financial
statements according to the instructions of the Board of Directors.

We recommend that the consolidated financial statements submitted to you be approved.

   

Key audit matter  How our audit addressed the key audit matter

As set out in the segment information, the GF Machining Solutions division
recorded revenues of CHF 916 million. The Group’s accounting principles for
sales and revenue recognition are described in the corporate accounting
principles.

We focused on revenue recognition in the GF Machining Solutions division
because of the use of multiple element contracts. Multiple element
contracts require a thorough assessment of revenue recognition in the
income statement as they have a higher inherent risk due to their complexity.
This concerns in particular the accounting for transactions where different
elements – machines, maintenance and support, as well as financing – are
sold together. 

The complexity of multiple element contracts relates to the allocation of
revenues to the individual elements and the timing of their recognition.

 

We focussed on whether the revenues allocated to the machines,
maintenance, support and financing elements were recorded based
on the corresponding contractual agreements and in accordance
with the Group’s accounting principles. 

In this context, it should be noted that Georg Fischer has updated the
relevant sections of the Group’s accounting principles. We confirmed
that this complies with the latest revisions to Swiss GAAP FER.

We re-performed the calculations to allocate the revenues to the
various elements of such transactions. Where discounts had been
agreed with customers, we tested whether they had been allocated
based on the corresponding fair values.

We also tested transactions to ensure that the amount of revenue
deferred was accurately calculated and appropriately recognised.
This involved reconciling the revenue from maintenance and support
services and from financing elements with the figures derived from
calculations based on the contractual terms and conditions.

In addition, we tested whether each single element of the multiple
element contract was recorded in the appropriate period.

Further, where revenue was recorded through manual journal
entries, we performed tests to establish whether the sale had
occurred or the service had been provided in the financial year in
order to support the revenue recognition. 

We obtained sufficient audit evidence to address the risk of revenue
recognition in the GF Machining Solutions division.
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Balance sheet as of 31 December 2016 

Financial statements Georg Fischer Ltd

CHF 1'000  Notes 2016  2015

       

Cash and cash equivalents and short-term investments with a quoted market price  2.1 252'694  198'571

Other current receivables due from third parties    4'987  6'354

Other current receivables due from Corporate Companies  2.2 25'292  29'070

Accrued income and prepaid expenses    3'930  2'712

Current assets    286'903  236'707

       

Loans to Corporate Companies  2.3 146'690  341'083

Other financial assets    1'743  1'757

Investments  2.4 1'025'639  913'789

Non-current assets    1'174'072  1'256'629

       
Assets    1'460'975  1'493'336

       

Current liabilities with third parties    10'210  3'082

Short-term interest-bearing liabilities due to third parties      200'000

Short-term interest-bearing liabilities due to Corporate Companies  2.5 200'362  72'625

Accrued expenses and deferred income  2.6 11'106  15'261

Current liabilities    221'678  290'968

       

Long-term interest-bearing liabilities    5'586  3'029

Long-term provisions  2.7 22'098  21'217

Non-current liabilities    27'684  24'246

       
Liabilities    249'362  315'214

       

Share capital  2.8 4'101  4'101

Legal capital reserves       

− Other capital reserves    89'506  89'506

Legal reserves       

− Other legal reserves    59'234  59'234

− Reserves for treasury shares  2.9 10'355  5'634

Statutory retained earnings       

− Available earnings carried forward    941'110  938'223

− Net profit for the year    107'307  81'424

Equity    1'211'613  1'178'122

       
Liabilities and equity    1'460'975  1'493'336

Financial statements Georg Fischer Ltd

Income statement for the year ended 
31 December 2016 

Financial statements Georg Fischer Ltd

CHF 1'000  Notes 2016  2015

       

Dividend income  3.1 138'729  131'647

Other income from investments    2'490  19

Income from services provided to Corporate Companies  3.2 58'072  53'497

Financial income  3.3 9'119  8'473

Commission income from Corporate Companies  3.4 11'454  11'986

Other income    2'305  5'194

Income    222'169  210'816

       

Value adjustment on investments  3.5 59'095  49'107

Other expenses for investments    4'563  2'791

Financial expenses  3.6 6'137  43'539

Cost of services provided by Corporate Companies    2'269  1'731

Personnel expenses    18'367  17'740

Other operating expenses  3.7 15'401  13'765

Direct taxes  3.8 9'030  719

Expenses    114'862  129'392

       
Net profit for the year    107'307  81'424
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Balance sheet as of 31 December 2016 

Financial statements Georg Fischer Ltd

CHF 1'000  Notes 2016  2015

       

Cash and cash equivalents and short-term investments with a quoted market price  2.1 252'694  198'571

Other current receivables due from third parties    4'987  6'354

Other current receivables due from Corporate Companies  2.2 25'292  29'070

Accrued income and prepaid expenses    3'930  2'712

Current assets    286'903  236'707

       

Loans to Corporate Companies  2.3 146'690  341'083

Other financial assets    1'743  1'757

Investments  2.4 1'025'639  913'789

Non-current assets    1'174'072  1'256'629

       
Assets    1'460'975  1'493'336

       

Current liabilities with third parties    10'210  3'082

Short-term interest-bearing liabilities due to third parties      200'000

Short-term interest-bearing liabilities due to Corporate Companies  2.5 200'362  72'625

Accrued expenses and deferred income  2.6 11'106  15'261

Current liabilities    221'678  290'968

       

Long-term interest-bearing liabilities    5'586  3'029

Long-term provisions  2.7 22'098  21'217

Non-current liabilities    27'684  24'246

       
Liabilities    249'362  315'214

       

Share capital  2.8 4'101  4'101

Legal capital reserves       

− Other capital reserves    89'506  89'506

Legal reserves       

− Other legal reserves    59'234  59'234

− Reserves for treasury shares  2.9 10'355  5'634

Statutory retained earnings       

− Available earnings carried forward    941'110  938'223

− Net profit for the year    107'307  81'424

Equity    1'211'613  1'178'122

       
Liabilities and equity    1'460'975  1'493'336

Financial statements Georg Fischer Ltd

Income statement for the year ended 
31 December 2016 

Financial statements Georg Fischer Ltd

CHF 1'000  Notes 2016  2015

       

Dividend income  3.1 138'729  131'647

Other income from investments    2'490  19

Income from services provided to Corporate Companies  3.2 58'072  53'497

Financial income  3.3 9'119  8'473

Commission income from Corporate Companies  3.4 11'454  11'986

Other income    2'305  5'194

Income    222'169  210'816

       

Value adjustment on investments  3.5 59'095  49'107

Other expenses for investments    4'563  2'791

Financial expenses  3.6 6'137  43'539

Cost of services provided by Corporate Companies    2'269  1'731

Personnel expenses    18'367  17'740

Other operating expenses  3.7 15'401  13'765

Direct taxes  3.8 9'030  719

Expenses    114'862  129'392

       
Net profit for the year    107'307  81'424
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Financial statements Georg Fischer Ltd

Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 
31 December 2016 

1 Legal reserves.

CHF 1'000  Share capital  
General

reserves 1  

Reserves from
capital

contributions 1  

Reserves for
treasury
shares 1  

Retained
earnings  Equity

             
Balance as of 31 December 2014  4'101  148'740  9'983  9'131  994'459  1'166'414

             

Net profit for the year          81'424  81'424

Dividend payment          –59'750  –59'750

Dividend from reserves from
capital contributions      –9'965      –9'965

Reclassification      –18  –3'496  3'514   

Rounding difference        –1    –1

Balance as of 31 December 2015  4'101  148'740   5'634  1'019'647  1'178'122

             

Net profit for the year          107'307  107'307

Dividend payment          –73'816  –73'816

Reclassification        4'721  –4'721   

Balance as of 31 December 2016  4'101  148'740   10'355  1'048'417  1'211'613

2 Information on balance sheet positions 
2.1 Cash and cash equivalents and short-term investments with a quoted market price
This balance sheet position contains securities in the amount of CHF 3.3 million (previous year: CHF 3.5
million).

2.2 Other current receivables due from Corporate Companies
The balance sheet position includes short-term receivables and loans to Corporate Companies and
positions from cash pooling with Corporate Companies. These are reported as a gross amount under
“Other current receivables due from Corporate Companies” and “Short-term interest-bearing liabilities
due from Corporate Companies”.

2.3 Loans to Corporate Companies
The activities of Corporate Companies are, whenever possible and suitable, financed by loans from the
Corporation instead of credit facilities from local banks.

2.4 Investments
Direct and indirect investments in Corporate Companies of Georg Fischer Ltd include the companies
listed in note 32 of the Annual Report.

1 Principles
1.1 General

1.2 Securities with market price

1.3 Loans to Corporate Companies and other financial assets

1.4 Investments

1.5 Dividend income

1.6 Share-based compensation

1.7 Long-term interest-bearing liabilities

Notes to the financial statements

These annual financial statements were prepared in accordance with the provisions of the Swiss
accounting law (Title 32 of the Swiss Code of Obligations). The main valuation principles applied that are
not prescribed by law are described below.

Georg Fischer Ltd, Schaffhausen (Switzerland), reports its consolidated financial statements based on a
recognized standard (Swiss GAAP FER) and, in accordance with the legal provisions, the company has
decided not to provide notes on the audit fees, a cash flow statement or an annual report.

Securities held for the short term are valued at the market price on the balance sheet date. No
equalization reserve has been created.

Loans granted to Corporate Companies and other financial investments in foreign currencies are valued
at the market rate on the actual closing date. Unrealized currency losses are booked, while unrealized
gains are deferred (imparity principle). The valuation is at nominal values, taking into consideration any
value adjustments required.

Investments are valued in line with the principle of individual valuation. In addition, further flat-rate value
adjustments can be applied.

Dividend income is booked when paid out.

More information about share-based compensation is available in the compensation report as well
as in note 6 of the Annual Report.

Interest-bearing liabilities are recognized at nominal value.
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Financial statements Georg Fischer Ltd

Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 
31 December 2016 

1 Legal reserves.

CHF 1'000  Share capital  
General

reserves 1  

Reserves from
capital

contributions 1  

Reserves for
treasury
shares 1  

Retained
earnings  Equity

             
Balance as of 31 December 2014  4'101  148'740  9'983  9'131  994'459  1'166'414

             

Net profit for the year          81'424  81'424

Dividend payment          –59'750  –59'750

Dividend from reserves from
capital contributions      –9'965      –9'965

Reclassification      –18  –3'496  3'514   

Rounding difference        –1    –1

Balance as of 31 December 2015  4'101  148'740   5'634  1'019'647  1'178'122

             

Net profit for the year          107'307  107'307

Dividend payment          –73'816  –73'816

Reclassification        4'721  –4'721   

Balance as of 31 December 2016  4'101  148'740   10'355  1'048'417  1'211'613

2 Information on balance sheet positions 
2.1 Cash and cash equivalents and short-term investments with a quoted market price
This balance sheet position contains securities in the amount of CHF 3.3 million (previous year: CHF 3.5
million).

2.2 Other current receivables due from Corporate Companies
The balance sheet position includes short-term receivables and loans to Corporate Companies and
positions from cash pooling with Corporate Companies. These are reported as a gross amount under
“Other current receivables due from Corporate Companies” and “Short-term interest-bearing liabilities
due from Corporate Companies”.

2.3 Loans to Corporate Companies
The activities of Corporate Companies are, whenever possible and suitable, financed by loans from the
Corporation instead of credit facilities from local banks.

2.4 Investments
Direct and indirect investments in Corporate Companies of Georg Fischer Ltd include the companies
listed in note 32 of the Annual Report.

1 Principles
1.1 General

1.2 Securities with market price

1.3 Loans to Corporate Companies and other financial assets

1.4 Investments

1.5 Dividend income

1.6 Share-based compensation

1.7 Long-term interest-bearing liabilities

Notes to the financial statements

These annual financial statements were prepared in accordance with the provisions of the Swiss
accounting law (Title 32 of the Swiss Code of Obligations). The main valuation principles applied that are
not prescribed by law are described below.

Georg Fischer Ltd, Schaffhausen (Switzerland), reports its consolidated financial statements based on a
recognized standard (Swiss GAAP FER) and, in accordance with the legal provisions, the company has
decided not to provide notes on the audit fees, a cash flow statement or an annual report.

Securities held for the short term are valued at the market price on the balance sheet date. No
equalization reserve has been created.

Loans granted to Corporate Companies and other financial investments in foreign currencies are valued
at the market rate on the actual closing date. Unrealized currency losses are booked, while unrealized
gains are deferred (imparity principle). The valuation is at nominal values, taking into consideration any
value adjustments required.

Investments are valued in line with the principle of individual valuation. In addition, further flat-rate value
adjustments can be applied.

Dividend income is booked when paid out.

More information about share-based compensation is available in the compensation report as well
as in note 6 of the Annual Report.

Interest-bearing liabilities are recognized at nominal value.
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2.5 Short-term interest-bearing liabilities due to Corporate Companies
This balance sheet item includes short-term liabilities and loans from Corporate Companies and items
from cash pooling with Corporate Companies. These are reported as a gross amount under “Other current
receivables due from Corporate Companies” and “Short-term interest-bearing liabilities due to Corporate
Companies”.

2.6 Accrued expenses and deferred income
Accrued expenses and deferred income largely comprises variable compensation for employees and fees
for the Board of Directors.

2.7 Long-term provisions
This provision mainly concerns currency risks.

2.8 Share capital
As of 31 December 2016, the share capital amounted to 4 ʼ100 ʼ898 registered shares at a par value of
CHF 1.

2.9 Reserves for treasury shares
Georg Fischer Finanz Ltd, a Corporate Company held by Georg Fischer Ltd, owned 12 ʼ338 registered
shares of Georg Fischer Ltd on the balance sheet date. Accordingly, a reserve for treasury shares was
set up at Georg Fischer Ltd.

3 Information on the income statement 
3.1 Dividend income
The dividend income for the year was CHF 139 million (previous year: CHF 132 million).

3.2 Income from services provided to Corporate Companies
The income from Corporate Companies consisted primarily of licensing income for the use of the
corporate brand +GF+ as well as income for services provided.

3.3 Financial income
The financial income comes primarily from interest income on the loans granted to Corporate Companies.

3.4 Commission income from Corporate Companies
This position contains commission income from Corporate Companies for issued guarantees. In the
previous year, this position was shown as part of the “Financial expenses”.

3.5 Value adjustment on investments
Some investments of Georg Fischer Ltd had to be written down due to the application of the principle of
individual evaluation. The principles for the valuation of investments are found in section 1.4.

3.6 Financial expenses
This income statement item includes mainly the interest expense for the debenture loan 3 3/8% with a
nominal value of CHF 200 million which was repaid on 12 May 2016 as well as currency gains.

3.7 Other operating expenses
The main expense items related to external consulting services, marketing expenses, fees for the Board
of Directors, and data processing costs.

Conditional capital: As of 31 December 2016, the conditional capital amounted to CHF 0.6 million and can
be created by exercising conversion or option rights granted in connection with debenture loans or
similar bonds of Georg Fischer Ltd or its Corporate Companies that were issued on the capital markets.

Authorized capital: In accordance with the resolution of the Annual General Meeting of 23 March 2016,
the Board of Directors is authorized to increase the share capital, until no later than 22 March 2018, by a
maximum amount of CHF 0.6 million, by issuing a maximum of 600ʼ000 fully paid-in registered shares
with a nominal value of CHF 1 each. The increase may be made in partial amounts.

The maximum amount of the authorized or conditional capital is reduced by the amount that authorized or
conditional capital is created through the issue of bonds or similar debt instruments or new shares.

3.8 Direct taxes
Income taxes in the period under review concerned not only the income taxes of Georg Fischer Ltd, but
also the corporation taxes of Georg Fischer BV & Co KG, Singen (Germany), acting as the German fiscal
unity parent of GF. Georg Fischer Ltd, as the associate of Georg Fischer BV & Co KG, is liable for German
corporation taxes. Increased taxable income in Germany but mainly in Switzerland resulted in rising
direct taxes.

4 Additional information
4.1 Full-time equivalents
As of 31 December 2016, Georg Fischer Ltd employed 60 people.

4.2 Contingent liabilities

4.3 Pension fund obligations
At year-end 2016, pension fund obligations amounted to CHF 4 million (previous year: CHF 1.5 million).

4.4 Significant shareholders
An overview can be found in the chapter Share price  of the Annual Report.

4.5 Shareholdings of members of the Board of Directors, Executive Committee, or persons related to
them
Information on the shareholdings of members of the Board of Directors, Executive Committee, or persons
related to them is provided in note 29 of the Annual Report.

5 Events after the balance sheet date
There were no events between 31 December 2016 and 17 February 2017 that would require an
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities and equity or would need to be disclosed
under this heading.

6 Compensation and shareholdings
Board of Directors
The members of the Board of Directors received cash compensation of CHF 1.159 million in the year
under review. In addition, a total of 1 ʼ501 GF registered shares with a total market value of CHF
1.251 million were allocated as share-related compensation. In the previous year, the allocation had been
1 ʼ534 GF registered shares, equivalent to a total market value of CHF 1.042 million. Together with other
benefits, the total compensation paid to the Board of Directors in the year under review amounted to CHF
2.523 million (previous year: CHF 2.331 million).

Georg Fischer Ltd bears joint liability with regard to the Swiss Federal Tax Administration for the
amounts due of value-added tax of all the Swiss Corporate Companies.

At the General Assembly of 23 March 2016, a maximum sum of CHF 2.774 million for remuneration of the
members of the Board was approved for the period from the 2016 Annual Shareholders’ Meeting to the
2017 Annual Shareholders’ Meeting.

The detailed disclosure of compensation to the Board of Directors is as follows:

CHF 1'000  2016  2015

     

Guarantees and pledges in favor of third parties:     

Guaranteed maximum amount  1'787'263  1'572'503

Thereof utilized  940'168  733'118
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2.5 Short-term interest-bearing liabilities due to Corporate Companies
This balance sheet item includes short-term liabilities and loans from Corporate Companies and items
from cash pooling with Corporate Companies. These are reported as a gross amount under “Other current
receivables due from Corporate Companies” and “Short-term interest-bearing liabilities due to Corporate
Companies”.

2.6 Accrued expenses and deferred income
Accrued expenses and deferred income largely comprises variable compensation for employees and fees
for the Board of Directors.

2.7 Long-term provisions
This provision mainly concerns currency risks.

2.8 Share capital
As of 31 December 2016, the share capital amounted to 4 ʼ100 ʼ898 registered shares at a par value of
CHF 1.

2.9 Reserves for treasury shares
Georg Fischer Finanz Ltd, a Corporate Company held by Georg Fischer Ltd, owned 12 ʼ338 registered
shares of Georg Fischer Ltd on the balance sheet date. Accordingly, a reserve for treasury shares was
set up at Georg Fischer Ltd.

3 Information on the income statement 
3.1 Dividend income
The dividend income for the year was CHF 139 million (previous year: CHF 132 million).

3.2 Income from services provided to Corporate Companies
The income from Corporate Companies consisted primarily of licensing income for the use of the
corporate brand +GF+ as well as income for services provided.

3.3 Financial income
The financial income comes primarily from interest income on the loans granted to Corporate Companies.

3.4 Commission income from Corporate Companies
This position contains commission income from Corporate Companies for issued guarantees. In the
previous year, this position was shown as part of the “Financial expenses”.

3.5 Value adjustment on investments
Some investments of Georg Fischer Ltd had to be written down due to the application of the principle of
individual evaluation. The principles for the valuation of investments are found in section 1.4.

3.6 Financial expenses
This income statement item includes mainly the interest expense for the debenture loan 3 3/8% with a
nominal value of CHF 200 million which was repaid on 12 May 2016 as well as currency gains.

3.7 Other operating expenses
The main expense items related to external consulting services, marketing expenses, fees for the Board
of Directors, and data processing costs.

Conditional capital: As of 31 December 2016, the conditional capital amounted to CHF 0.6 million and can
be created by exercising conversion or option rights granted in connection with debenture loans or
similar bonds of Georg Fischer Ltd or its Corporate Companies that were issued on the capital markets.

Authorized capital: In accordance with the resolution of the Annual General Meeting of 23 March 2016,
the Board of Directors is authorized to increase the share capital, until no later than 22 March 2018, by a
maximum amount of CHF 0.6 million, by issuing a maximum of 600ʼ000 fully paid-in registered shares
with a nominal value of CHF 1 each. The increase may be made in partial amounts.

The maximum amount of the authorized or conditional capital is reduced by the amount that authorized or
conditional capital is created through the issue of bonds or similar debt instruments or new shares.

3.8 Direct taxes
Income taxes in the period under review concerned not only the income taxes of Georg Fischer Ltd, but
also the corporation taxes of Georg Fischer BV & Co KG, Singen (Germany), acting as the German fiscal
unity parent of GF. Georg Fischer Ltd, as the associate of Georg Fischer BV & Co KG, is liable for German
corporation taxes. Increased taxable income in Germany but mainly in Switzerland resulted in rising
direct taxes.

4 Additional information
4.1 Full-time equivalents
As of 31 December 2016, Georg Fischer Ltd employed 60 people.

4.2 Contingent liabilities

4.3 Pension fund obligations
At year-end 2016, pension fund obligations amounted to CHF 4 million (previous year: CHF 1.5 million).

4.4 Significant shareholders
An overview can be found in the chapter Share price  of the Annual Report.

4.5 Shareholdings of members of the Board of Directors, Executive Committee, or persons related to
them
Information on the shareholdings of members of the Board of Directors, Executive Committee, or persons
related to them is provided in note 29 of the Annual Report.

5 Events after the balance sheet date
There were no events between 31 December 2016 and 17 February 2017 that would require an
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities and equity or would need to be disclosed
under this heading.

6 Compensation and shareholdings
Board of Directors
The members of the Board of Directors received cash compensation of CHF 1.159 million in the year
under review. In addition, a total of 1 ʼ501 GF registered shares with a total market value of CHF
1.251 million were allocated as share-related compensation. In the previous year, the allocation had been
1 ʼ534 GF registered shares, equivalent to a total market value of CHF 1.042 million. Together with other
benefits, the total compensation paid to the Board of Directors in the year under review amounted to CHF
2.523 million (previous year: CHF 2.331 million).

Georg Fischer Ltd bears joint liability with regard to the Swiss Federal Tax Administration for the
amounts due of value-added tax of all the Swiss Corporate Companies.

At the General Assembly of 23 March 2016, a maximum sum of CHF 2.774 million for remuneration of the
members of the Board was approved for the period from the 2016 Annual Shareholders’ Meeting to the
2017 Annual Shareholders’ Meeting.

The detailed disclosure of compensation to the Board of Directors is as follows:

CHF 1'000  2016  2015

     

Guarantees and pledges in favor of third parties:     

Guaranteed maximum amount  1'787'263  1'572'503

Thereof utilized  940'168  733'118
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Compensation paid to the members of the Board of Directors 2016

(all in CHF 1'000, except column "Number of shares")

* The total compensation in 2015 amounted to CHF 2.331 million, including a compensation for Rudolf Huber (Chairman Audit Committee until 18 March 2015) of CHF 58'000

and compensation for Isabelle Welton (Member Compensation Committee until 18 March 2015) of CHF 44'000.

1 The cash compensation includes reimbursements for international travel amounting to CHF 45'000.

2 The share-based compensation consists in the allocation of a fixed number of shares. The amount of the share-related compensation is calculated on the basis of the full

value of the shares at the year-end price of CHF 834 on 31 December 2016.

3 Social insurance funds represent employer contributions to social insurance funds.

4 The total compensation encompasses the cash compensation, the share-based compensation and the contribution to social insurance funds.

5 Member of the Compensation Committee since 23 March 2016.

6 Member of the Board of Directors since 23 March 2016.

7 Chairman Compensation Committee until 23 March 2016.

8 Chairwoman of the Compensation Committee since 23 March 2016.

Executive Committee
The members of the Executive Committee received cash, share-related compensation, social security and
pension contributions amounting to CHF 8.320 million for the year under review (previous year: CHF
7.736 million). Under the new long-term incentive plan, 2ʼ126 GF registered shares (1 ʼ063 restricted
shares and 1ʼ063 performance shares) with a total value of CHF 1.773 million, based on a share price of
CHF 834 at year end 2016, were granted to members of the Executive Committee for the year under
review and thereof 1ʼ063 GF registered shares were transferred. (previous year: 2ʼ050 GF registered
restricted shares with a total value CHF 1.392 million).

The compensation paid to the Board of Directors for the year 2016 was above that of the previous year.
The increase is explained by the increased value of the shares from CHF 679 in 2015 to CHF 834 in
2016.

In the year under review, Mr. Ulrich Graf, Chairman of the Compensation Committee, was remunerated
until the General Assembly of 23 March 2016. Both, Mr. Roger Michaelis and Mr. Zhiqiang Zhang, received
each CHF 22 ʼ500 for international travel time spent; these reimbursements are included in the cash
compensation. No further compensation was paid to members of the Board of Directors. No compensation
was paid to parties closely related to members of the Board of Directors.

  Compensation  

Social insurance
funds 3

 Total 
compen-

sation 
2016 4

 Total 
compen-

sation 
2015 4  

Cash 
compensation 1  

Number of
shares  

Share-based
compensation 2    

             

Andreas Koopmann  270  300  250  23  543  499

Chairman Board of Directors             

Chairman Nomination Committee             

Hubert Achermann  150  150  125  12  287  254

Chairman Audit Committee             

Gerold Bührer  123  150  125  10  258  235

Vice Chairman Board of Directors             

Member Audit Committee             

Roman Boutellier 5  105  150  125  9  239  201

Member Nomination Committee             

Member Compensation Committee             

Riet Cadonau 6  54  116  97  8  159   

Member Board of Directors             

Ulrich Graf 7  25  35  29  2  56  222

Chairman Compensation Committee            

Roger Michaelis  123  150  125  13  261  230

Member Audit Committee             

Eveline Saupper 8  106  150  125  12  243  159

Chairwoman Compensation
Committee             

Jasmin Staiblin  90  150  125  11  226  202

Member Compensation Committee             

Zhiqiang Zhang  113  150  125  13  251  227

Member Nomination Committee             

Total  1'159  1'501  1'251  113  2'523  2'229 *

Compensation paid to the members of the Executive Committee 2016

(all in CHF 1'000, except rows "Restricted shares" and "Performance shares")

* The Executive Committee compensation includes the compensation for Pietro Lori (Executive Committee member until 31 July 2016) and includes the compensation for

Joost Geginat (Executive Committee member since 1 May 2016).

1 The short-term incentive is based on the short-term incentive plan. The amount is determined by the fulfillment of personal performance objectives and by the financial

results of the Divisions and the Corporation. The short-term incentive for the 2016 financial year was approved by the Board of Directors on 17 February 2017. Payment will

be made in 2017.

2 The share-based remuneration is based on the long-term incentive plan: Each year, numbers of restricted (RS) and performance shares (PS) are allocated. RS are blocked for

five years. The amount of the RS-based compensation is calculated on the basis of the full value of the shares at the year-end price of CHF 834 on 31 December 2016. RS are

transferred in 2017. The amount of the PS-based compensation is calculated on the basis of the grant value of the PS at the year-end price of CHF 834 on 31 December 2016.

The number of PS vesting after the vesting period of 3 years depends on meeting the respective performance criteria.

3 The social insurance fund expenses represent employer contributions to social security.

4 The pension fund expenses represent employer contributions to pension funds.

5 Based on the Company's regulation for all employees, the CEO received a jubilee premium of one monthly salary for 25 years employment with GF.

6 The total compensation is comprised of the fixed salary, the short-term incentive, the share-based remuneration and the social and pension contributions.

– The Executive Committee compensation includes the compensation for Pietro Lori (Executive
Committee member until 31 July 2016) and includes the compensation for Joost Geginat (Executive
Committee member since 1 May 2016).

– The value of the shares increased from CHF 679 in 2015 to CHF 834 in 2016.
– The short-term incentive related to the financial results of the Corporation and the divisions and to

the individual performance was comparable to 2015. Consequently, the overall short-term incentive
percentage ranges from 56.9% to 71.8% of the base salary for the Executive Committee members and
amounts to 106.9% of the base salary for the Chief Executive Officer.

– The fixed salary was slightly adjusted in order to keep competitive levels in line with the market
practice of GF’s industrial sector.

– The employer’s contributions to social security and to company retirement plans have increased
following the adjustments of fixed salary. Please note that a significant portion of the social security
payments of the employer to the Swiss social security system represents a solidarity payment as the
individuals will not get any return or benefit due to these payments.

Shareholdings of members of the Board of Directors, Executive Committee, or persons related to them
Related persons and companies are defined as family members and persons or companies over which a
significant influence can be exercised. Transactions with related persons and companies must be settled
on prevailing market terms.

At the General Assembly of 18 March 2015, a maximum sum of CHF 9.412 million for remuneration of the
members of the Executive Committee for the business year 2016 was approved.

The detailed disclosure of compensation to the Executive Committee in accordance with the Ordinance
against excessive pay in stock exchange-listed companies is as follows:

Total compensation for the Chief Executive Officer and the other members of the Executive Committee in
2016 was higher than in 2015. The increase is explained by the following factors:

Starting 1 August 2016 until 31 December 2016, Pietro Lori continued his employment with GF as non-
Executive Committee member and the compensation package for this period amounted to CHF 528 ʼ384.

In the year under review, no further compensation was paid to former members of the Executive
Committee. No compensation was paid to parties closely related to members of the Executive Committee.

Apart from the compensation paid to the Board of Directors and the Executive Committee and the regular
contributions to the various pension fund institutions, no transactions with related persons or companies
took place.

  

Fixed
salary in

cash  

Short-
term 

incentive 
in cash 1  

Restricted
shares  

Perfor-
mance 
shares  

Share-
based

remune-
ration 2  

Social 
insu-

rance
funds 3  

Pension
funds 4  

Jubilee
premium 5  

Total
com-
pen-

sation
2016 6  

Total
compen-

sation
2015

Executive Committee *  2'993  2'247  1'063  1'063  1'773  398  838  71  8'320  7'736

Of whom 
Yves Serra, CEO 
(highest individual
compensation)  873  933  425  425  709  134  256  71  2'976  2'781
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Compensation paid to the members of the Board of Directors 2016

(all in CHF 1'000, except column "Number of shares")

* The total compensation in 2015 amounted to CHF 2.331 million, including a compensation for Rudolf Huber (Chairman Audit Committee until 18 March 2015) of CHF 58'000

and compensation for Isabelle Welton (Member Compensation Committee until 18 March 2015) of CHF 44'000.

1 The cash compensation includes reimbursements for international travel amounting to CHF 45'000.

2 The share-based compensation consists in the allocation of a fixed number of shares. The amount of the share-related compensation is calculated on the basis of the full

value of the shares at the year-end price of CHF 834 on 31 December 2016.

3 Social insurance funds represent employer contributions to social insurance funds.

4 The total compensation encompasses the cash compensation, the share-based compensation and the contribution to social insurance funds.

5 Member of the Compensation Committee since 23 March 2016.

6 Member of the Board of Directors since 23 March 2016.

7 Chairman Compensation Committee until 23 March 2016.

8 Chairwoman of the Compensation Committee since 23 March 2016.

Executive Committee
The members of the Executive Committee received cash, share-related compensation, social security and
pension contributions amounting to CHF 8.320 million for the year under review (previous year: CHF
7.736 million). Under the new long-term incentive plan, 2ʼ126 GF registered shares (1 ʼ063 restricted
shares and 1ʼ063 performance shares) with a total value of CHF 1.773 million, based on a share price of
CHF 834 at year end 2016, were granted to members of the Executive Committee for the year under
review and thereof 1ʼ063 GF registered shares were transferred. (previous year: 2ʼ050 GF registered
restricted shares with a total value CHF 1.392 million).

The compensation paid to the Board of Directors for the year 2016 was above that of the previous year.
The increase is explained by the increased value of the shares from CHF 679 in 2015 to CHF 834 in
2016.

In the year under review, Mr. Ulrich Graf, Chairman of the Compensation Committee, was remunerated
until the General Assembly of 23 March 2016. Both, Mr. Roger Michaelis and Mr. Zhiqiang Zhang, received
each CHF 22 ʼ500 for international travel time spent; these reimbursements are included in the cash
compensation. No further compensation was paid to members of the Board of Directors. No compensation
was paid to parties closely related to members of the Board of Directors.

  Compensation  

Social insurance
funds 3

 Total 
compen-

sation 
2016 4

 Total 
compen-

sation 
2015 4  

Cash 
compensation 1  

Number of
shares  

Share-based
compensation 2    

             

Andreas Koopmann  270  300  250  23  543  499

Chairman Board of Directors             

Chairman Nomination Committee             

Hubert Achermann  150  150  125  12  287  254

Chairman Audit Committee             

Gerold Bührer  123  150  125  10  258  235

Vice Chairman Board of Directors             

Member Audit Committee             

Roman Boutellier 5  105  150  125  9  239  201

Member Nomination Committee             

Member Compensation Committee             

Riet Cadonau 6  54  116  97  8  159   

Member Board of Directors             

Ulrich Graf 7  25  35  29  2  56  222

Chairman Compensation Committee            

Roger Michaelis  123  150  125  13  261  230

Member Audit Committee             

Eveline Saupper 8  106  150  125  12  243  159

Chairwoman Compensation
Committee             

Jasmin Staiblin  90  150  125  11  226  202

Member Compensation Committee             

Zhiqiang Zhang  113  150  125  13  251  227

Member Nomination Committee             

Total  1'159  1'501  1'251  113  2'523  2'229 *

Compensation paid to the members of the Executive Committee 2016

(all in CHF 1'000, except rows "Restricted shares" and "Performance shares")

* The Executive Committee compensation includes the compensation for Pietro Lori (Executive Committee member until 31 July 2016) and includes the compensation for

Joost Geginat (Executive Committee member since 1 May 2016).

1 The short-term incentive is based on the short-term incentive plan. The amount is determined by the fulfillment of personal performance objectives and by the financial

results of the Divisions and the Corporation. The short-term incentive for the 2016 financial year was approved by the Board of Directors on 17 February 2017. Payment will

be made in 2017.

2 The share-based remuneration is based on the long-term incentive plan: Each year, numbers of restricted (RS) and performance shares (PS) are allocated. RS are blocked for

five years. The amount of the RS-based compensation is calculated on the basis of the full value of the shares at the year-end price of CHF 834 on 31 December 2016. RS are

transferred in 2017. The amount of the PS-based compensation is calculated on the basis of the grant value of the PS at the year-end price of CHF 834 on 31 December 2016.

The number of PS vesting after the vesting period of 3 years depends on meeting the respective performance criteria.

3 The social insurance fund expenses represent employer contributions to social security.

4 The pension fund expenses represent employer contributions to pension funds.

5 Based on the Company's regulation for all employees, the CEO received a jubilee premium of one monthly salary for 25 years employment with GF.

6 The total compensation is comprised of the fixed salary, the short-term incentive, the share-based remuneration and the social and pension contributions.

– The Executive Committee compensation includes the compensation for Pietro Lori (Executive
Committee member until 31 July 2016) and includes the compensation for Joost Geginat (Executive
Committee member since 1 May 2016).

– The value of the shares increased from CHF 679 in 2015 to CHF 834 in 2016.
– The short-term incentive related to the financial results of the Corporation and the divisions and to

the individual performance was comparable to 2015. Consequently, the overall short-term incentive
percentage ranges from 56.9% to 71.8% of the base salary for the Executive Committee members and
amounts to 106.9% of the base salary for the Chief Executive Officer.

– The fixed salary was slightly adjusted in order to keep competitive levels in line with the market
practice of GF’s industrial sector.

– The employer’s contributions to social security and to company retirement plans have increased
following the adjustments of fixed salary. Please note that a significant portion of the social security
payments of the employer to the Swiss social security system represents a solidarity payment as the
individuals will not get any return or benefit due to these payments.

Shareholdings of members of the Board of Directors, Executive Committee, or persons related to them
Related persons and companies are defined as family members and persons or companies over which a
significant influence can be exercised. Transactions with related persons and companies must be settled
on prevailing market terms.

At the General Assembly of 18 March 2015, a maximum sum of CHF 9.412 million for remuneration of the
members of the Executive Committee for the business year 2016 was approved.

The detailed disclosure of compensation to the Executive Committee in accordance with the Ordinance
against excessive pay in stock exchange-listed companies is as follows:

Total compensation for the Chief Executive Officer and the other members of the Executive Committee in
2016 was higher than in 2015. The increase is explained by the following factors:

Starting 1 August 2016 until 31 December 2016, Pietro Lori continued his employment with GF as non-
Executive Committee member and the compensation package for this period amounted to CHF 528 ʼ384.

In the year under review, no further compensation was paid to former members of the Executive
Committee. No compensation was paid to parties closely related to members of the Executive Committee.

Apart from the compensation paid to the Board of Directors and the Executive Committee and the regular
contributions to the various pension fund institutions, no transactions with related persons or companies
took place.
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Shareholdings Board of Directors

1 Member Compensation Committee since the Annual Shareholders' Meeting 2016 (23 March 2016).

2 Member of the Board of Directors since the Annual Shareholders' Meeting 2016 (23 March 2016).

3 Chairman Compensation Committee until the Annual Shareholders' Meeting 2016 (23 March 2016).

4 Chairwoman Compensation Committee since the Annual Shareholders' Meeting 2016 (23 March 2016).

Shareholdings Executive Committee

* The number of Georg Fischer registered shares amounted to 11'963 in 2015 and included the number of registered shares of Pietro Lori (Member Executive Committee until

31 July 2016) of 1'934.

1 Member Executive Committee since 1 May 2016.

Financial statements Georg Fischer Ltd

The registered shares transferred as part of share-based compensation to the Executive Committee are
blocked for at least five years.

As of 31 December 2016, members of the senior management registered a total of 21 ʼ374 shares of
Georg Fischer Ltd (inclusive Pietro Lori). A total of 45ʼ115 Georg Fischer shares were held by the Board
of Directors, the Executive Committee, and the senior management as of 31 December 2016,
corresponding to 1.10% of issued shares.

Neither Georg Fischer Ltd nor its Corporate Companies granted any guarantees, loans, advances, or
credit facilities to members of the Executive Committee or the Board of Directors or related parties.

Compensation has not involved the allocation of options to current or past members of the Executive
Committee or Board of Directors. Neither they nor any related persons possess option rights allocated by
GF. As of 31 December 2016, the members of the Executive Committee held no option rights for Georg
Fischer registered shares.

In 2016, GF did not make any severance payments to members of the Board of Directors or Executive
Committee who left the company in the period under review or earlier.

     

Number of
Georg Fischer

registered shares as
of 31 Dec. 2016  

Number of
Georg Fischer

registered shares as
of 31 Dec. 2015

        

Andreas Koopmann  
Chairman Board of Directors
Chairman Nomination Committee   2'181  1'881

Hubert Achermann  Chairman Audit Committee   417  267

Gerold Bührer  
Vice Chairman Board of Directors
Member Audit Committee   2'872  2'722

Roman Boutellier 1  
Member Nomination Committee
Member Compensation Committee   2'949  2'799

Riet Cadonau 2  Member Board of Directors   116   

Ulrich Graf 3  Chairman Compensation Committee    1'166

Roger Michaelis  Member Audit Committee   717  567

Eveline Saupper 4  Chairwoman Compensation Committee   778  628

Jasmin Staiblin  Member Compensation Committee   895  745

Zhiqiang Zhang  Member Nomination Committee   1'937  2'387

Total Directors   12'862  13'162

     

Number of
Georg Fischer

registered shares as
of 31 Dec. 2016  

Number of
Georg Fischer

registered shares as
of 31 Dec. 2015*

        

Yves Serra  President and CEO   5'478  5'528

Roland Abt  CFO, Head of Corporate Finance & Controlling   2'364  2'064

Joost Geginat 1  Head of GF Piping Systems    

Josef Edbauer  Head of GF Automotive   2'032  1'732

Pascal Boillat  Head of GF Machining Solutions   1'005  705

Total Executive Committee     10'879  10'029

Financial statements Georg Fischer Ltd

Financial statements Georg Fischer Ltd

Proposal by the Board of Directors for the
appropriation of retained earnings 2016 

Proposal by the Board of Directors for the appropriation of the retained
earnings 2016 

1 The dividend payment is based on the issued share capital as of 31 December 2016. No distribution will be made for treasury shares held by Georg Fischer Ltd.

The Board of Directors will propose to the Annual Shareholders’ Meeting of 19 April 2017 to pay out a
dividend of CHF 20 per registered share out of retained earnings.

In the previous year, a dividend of CHF 18 per registered share out of retained earnings was paid out
according to the decision of the Annual Shareholders’ Meeting of 23 March 2016. 
 
Schaffhausen, 17 February 2017

For the Board of Directors
The Chairman

Andreas Koopmann

CHF 1'000  2016  2015

     

     

Net profit for the year  107'307  81'424

Earnings carried forward  945'831  934'709

Reclassification of reserves from capital contribution to retained earnings    18

Allocation to/reduction in reserves for treasury shares  –4'721  3'496

Retained earnings  1'048'417  1'019'647

     
Dividend payment CHF 20 per registered share 1  –82'018  –73'816

To be carried forward  966'399  945'831
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Shareholdings Board of Directors

1 Member Compensation Committee since the Annual Shareholders' Meeting 2016 (23 March 2016).

2 Member of the Board of Directors since the Annual Shareholders' Meeting 2016 (23 March 2016).

3 Chairman Compensation Committee until the Annual Shareholders' Meeting 2016 (23 March 2016).

4 Chairwoman Compensation Committee since the Annual Shareholders' Meeting 2016 (23 March 2016).

Shareholdings Executive Committee

* The number of Georg Fischer registered shares amounted to 11'963 in 2015 and included the number of registered shares of Pietro Lori (Member Executive Committee until

31 July 2016) of 1'934.

1 Member Executive Committee since 1 May 2016.

Financial statements Georg Fischer Ltd

The registered shares transferred as part of share-based compensation to the Executive Committee are
blocked for at least five years.

As of 31 December 2016, members of the senior management registered a total of 21 ʼ374 shares of
Georg Fischer Ltd (inclusive Pietro Lori). A total of 45ʼ115 Georg Fischer shares were held by the Board
of Directors, the Executive Committee, and the senior management as of 31 December 2016,
corresponding to 1.10% of issued shares.

Neither Georg Fischer Ltd nor its Corporate Companies granted any guarantees, loans, advances, or
credit facilities to members of the Executive Committee or the Board of Directors or related parties.

Compensation has not involved the allocation of options to current or past members of the Executive
Committee or Board of Directors. Neither they nor any related persons possess option rights allocated by
GF. As of 31 December 2016, the members of the Executive Committee held no option rights for Georg
Fischer registered shares.

In 2016, GF did not make any severance payments to members of the Board of Directors or Executive
Committee who left the company in the period under review or earlier.

     

Number of
Georg Fischer

registered shares as
of 31 Dec. 2016  

Number of
Georg Fischer

registered shares as
of 31 Dec. 2015

        

Andreas Koopmann  
Chairman Board of Directors
Chairman Nomination Committee   2'181  1'881

Hubert Achermann  Chairman Audit Committee   417  267

Gerold Bührer  
Vice Chairman Board of Directors
Member Audit Committee   2'872  2'722

Roman Boutellier 1  
Member Nomination Committee
Member Compensation Committee   2'949  2'799

Riet Cadonau 2  Member Board of Directors   116   

Ulrich Graf 3  Chairman Compensation Committee    1'166

Roger Michaelis  Member Audit Committee   717  567

Eveline Saupper 4  Chairwoman Compensation Committee   778  628

Jasmin Staiblin  Member Compensation Committee   895  745

Zhiqiang Zhang  Member Nomination Committee   1'937  2'387

Total Directors   12'862  13'162

     

Number of
Georg Fischer

registered shares as
of 31 Dec. 2016  

Number of
Georg Fischer

registered shares as
of 31 Dec. 2015*

        

Yves Serra  President and CEO   5'478  5'528

Roland Abt  CFO, Head of Corporate Finance & Controlling   2'364  2'064

Joost Geginat 1  Head of GF Piping Systems    

Josef Edbauer  Head of GF Automotive   2'032  1'732

Pascal Boillat  Head of GF Machining Solutions   1'005  705

Total Executive Committee     10'879  10'029
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Financial statements Georg Fischer Ltd

Proposal by the Board of Directors for the
appropriation of retained earnings 2016 

Proposal by the Board of Directors for the appropriation of the retained
earnings 2016 

1 The dividend payment is based on the issued share capital as of 31 December 2016. No distribution will be made for treasury shares held by Georg Fischer Ltd.

The Board of Directors will propose to the Annual Shareholders’ Meeting of 19 April 2017 to pay out a
dividend of CHF 20 per registered share out of retained earnings.

In the previous year, a dividend of CHF 18 per registered share out of retained earnings was paid out
according to the decision of the Annual Shareholders’ Meeting of 23 March 2016. 
 
Schaffhausen, 17 February 2017

For the Board of Directors
The Chairman

Andreas Koopmann

CHF 1'000  2016  2015

     

     

Net profit for the year  107'307  81'424

Earnings carried forward  945'831  934'709

Reclassification of reserves from capital contribution to retained earnings    18

Allocation to/reduction in reserves for treasury shares  –4'721  3'496

Retained earnings  1'048'417  1'019'647

     
Dividend payment CHF 20 per registered share 1  –82'018  –73'816

To be carried forward  966'399  945'831
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Financial statements Georg Fischer Ltd

Report of the statutory auditor to 
the Annual Shareholders’ Meeting of 
Georg Fischer Ltd, Schaffhausen

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Georg Fischer Ltd, which comprise the balance sheet as at
31 December 2016,  income statement and statement of changes in equity for the year then ended and
notes, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements as at 31 December 2016 comply with Swiss law
and the articles of incorporation.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Swiss law and Swiss Auditing Standards. Our responsibilities
under those provisions and standards are further described in the “Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit
of the financial statements” section of our report.

We are independent of the entity in accordance with the provisions of Swiss law and the requirements of
the Swiss audit profession and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Our audit approach
Overview

Audit scope

We designed our audit by determining materiality and assessing the risks of material misstatement in the
financial statements. In particular, we considered where subjective judgements were made; for example,
in respect of significant accounting estimates that involved making assumptions and considering future
events that are inherently uncertain. As in all of our audits, we also addressed the risk of management
override of internal controls, including among other matters consideration of whether there was
evidence of bias that represented a risk of material misstatement due to fraud.

Materiality

The scope of our audit was influenced by our application of materiality. Our audit opinion aims to provide
reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement. Misstatements
may arise due to fraud or error. They are considered material if individually or in aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial
statements.

Based on our professional judgement, we determined certain quantitative thresholds for materiality,
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Report of the statutory auditor to 
the Annual Shareholders’ Meeting of 
Georg Fischer Ltd, Schaffhausen

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Georg Fischer Ltd, which comprise the balance sheet as at
31 December 2016,  income statement and statement of changes in equity for the year then ended and
notes, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements as at 31 December 2016 comply with Swiss law
and the articles of incorporation.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Swiss law and Swiss Auditing Standards. Our responsibilities
under those provisions and standards are further described in the “Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit
of the financial statements” section of our report.

We are independent of the entity in accordance with the provisions of Swiss law and the requirements of
the Swiss audit profession and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Our audit approach
Overview

Audit scope

We designed our audit by determining materiality and assessing the risks of material misstatement in the
financial statements. In particular, we considered where subjective judgements were made; for example,
in respect of significant accounting estimates that involved making assumptions and considering future
events that are inherently uncertain. As in all of our audits, we also addressed the risk of management
override of internal controls, including among other matters consideration of whether there was
evidence of bias that represented a risk of material misstatement due to fraud.

Materiality

The scope of our audit was influenced by our application of materiality. Our audit opinion aims to provide
reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement. Misstatements
may arise due to fraud or error. They are considered material if individually or in aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial
statements.

Based on our professional judgement, we determined certain quantitative thresholds for materiality,
including the overall materiality for the financial statements as a whole as set out in the table below.
These, together with qualitative considerations, helped us to determine the scope of our audit and the
nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures and to evaluate the effect of misstatements, both
individually and in aggregate, on the financial statements as a whole.

Report on key audit matters based on the Circular 1/2015 of the Federal Audit Oversight
Authority

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our
audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of
our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Valuation of investments in subsidiaries

Responsibilities of the Board of Directors for the financial statements

The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements in accordance with
the provisions of Swiss law and the company’s articles of incorporation, and for such internal control as
the Board of Directors determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the entity’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the
entity or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with Swiss law and Swiss Auditing Standards will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located at the

   

Overall materiality  CHF 2’900’000

How we determined it  0.2% of total assets

Rationale for the materialitybenchmark
applied  

We chose total assets as the benchmark because, in our view, it is a relevant benchmarkagainst which
a holding company can be as-sessed, and it is a generally accepted benchmark for materiality
considerations.

   

Key audit matter  How our audit addressed the key audit matter

As at 31 December 2016, the Company had investments in subsidiaries in the
amount of CHF 1'026 million (prior year: CHF 914 million). Of the 130
subsidiaries in 33 different countries, 75 were held directly and 55 indirectly
by the Company.

These investments are stated at acquisition cost in accordance with the
commercial accounting and financial reporting provisions of the Swiss Code
of Obligations.

The investments are valued on an individual basis. Where necessary,
impairment charges are recognised for a loss in value. Moreover, general
impairment allowances may be created in addition (see principles, in the
notes to the financial statements).

We consider the impairment testing of investments in subsidiaries as a key
audit matter due to their significance on the balance sheet.

 

Management calculates the valuation of each subsidiary on the basis
of the value of the underlying net assets at book value (for one third
of the valuation) and the value of capitalised earnings (for the
remaining two thirds).

We compared the book value of the investments in subsidiaries as at
year-end 2016 to the companies’ valuations as calculated by
Management.

We compared the underlying value of the net as-sets with the value
of the shareholders’ equity of the company concerned. We compared
the earnings used for the capitalised earnings estimate with the prior
year’s figures and with the actual figures. The capitalisation rate
used was checked against country-specific long-term interest rate
forecasts and a company-specific risk premium. 

Based on our results-oriented audit procedures, we obtained
adequate assurance with regard to the impairment testing of the
investments in subsidiaries.
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Report of the statutory auditor to 
the Annual Shareholders’ Meeting of 
Georg Fischer Ltd, Schaffhausen

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Georg Fischer Ltd, which comprise the balance sheet as at
31 December 2016,  income statement and statement of changes in equity for the year then ended and
notes, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements as at 31 December 2016 comply with Swiss law
and the articles of incorporation.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Swiss law and Swiss Auditing Standards. Our responsibilities
under those provisions and standards are further described in the “Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit
of the financial statements” section of our report.

We are independent of the entity in accordance with the provisions of Swiss law and the requirements of
the Swiss audit profession and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Our audit approach
Overview

Audit scope

We designed our audit by determining materiality and assessing the risks of material misstatement in the
financial statements. In particular, we considered where subjective judgements were made; for example,
in respect of significant accounting estimates that involved making assumptions and considering future
events that are inherently uncertain. As in all of our audits, we also addressed the risk of management
override of internal controls, including among other matters consideration of whether there was
evidence of bias that represented a risk of material misstatement due to fraud.

Materiality

The scope of our audit was influenced by our application of materiality. Our audit opinion aims to provide
reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement. Misstatements
may arise due to fraud or error. They are considered material if individually or in aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial
statements.

Based on our professional judgement, we determined certain quantitative thresholds for materiality,
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Report of the statutory auditor to 
the Annual Shareholders’ Meeting of 
Georg Fischer Ltd, Schaffhausen

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Georg Fischer Ltd, which comprise the balance sheet as at
31 December 2016,  income statement and statement of changes in equity for the year then ended and
notes, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements as at 31 December 2016 comply with Swiss law
and the articles of incorporation.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Swiss law and Swiss Auditing Standards. Our responsibilities
under those provisions and standards are further described in the “Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit
of the financial statements” section of our report.

We are independent of the entity in accordance with the provisions of Swiss law and the requirements of
the Swiss audit profession and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Our audit approach
Overview

Audit scope

We designed our audit by determining materiality and assessing the risks of material misstatement in the
financial statements. In particular, we considered where subjective judgements were made; for example,
in respect of significant accounting estimates that involved making assumptions and considering future
events that are inherently uncertain. As in all of our audits, we also addressed the risk of management
override of internal controls, including among other matters consideration of whether there was
evidence of bias that represented a risk of material misstatement due to fraud.

Materiality

The scope of our audit was influenced by our application of materiality. Our audit opinion aims to provide
reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement. Misstatements
may arise due to fraud or error. They are considered material if individually or in aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial
statements.

Based on our professional judgement, we determined certain quantitative thresholds for materiality,
including the overall materiality for the financial statements as a whole as set out in the table below.
These, together with qualitative considerations, helped us to determine the scope of our audit and the
nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures and to evaluate the effect of misstatements, both
individually and in aggregate, on the financial statements as a whole.

Report on key audit matters based on the Circular 1/2015 of the Federal Audit Oversight
Authority

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our
audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of
our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Valuation of investments in subsidiaries

Responsibilities of the Board of Directors for the financial statements

The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements in accordance with
the provisions of Swiss law and the company’s articles of incorporation, and for such internal control as
the Board of Directors determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the entity’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the
entity or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with Swiss law and Swiss Auditing Standards will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located at the

   

Overall materiality  CHF 2’900’000

How we determined it  0.2% of total assets

Rationale for the materialitybenchmark
applied  

We chose total assets as the benchmark because, in our view, it is a relevant benchmarkagainst which
a holding company can be as-sessed, and it is a generally accepted benchmark for materiality
considerations.

   

Key audit matter  How our audit addressed the key audit matter

As at 31 December 2016, the Company had investments in subsidiaries in the
amount of CHF 1'026 million (prior year: CHF 914 million). Of the 130
subsidiaries in 33 different countries, 75 were held directly and 55 indirectly
by the Company.

These investments are stated at acquisition cost in accordance with the
commercial accounting and financial reporting provisions of the Swiss Code
of Obligations.

The investments are valued on an individual basis. Where necessary,
impairment charges are recognised for a loss in value. Moreover, general
impairment allowances may be created in addition (see principles, in the
notes to the financial statements).

We consider the impairment testing of investments in subsidiaries as a key
audit matter due to their significance on the balance sheet.

 

Management calculates the valuation of each subsidiary on the basis
of the value of the underlying net assets at book value (for one third
of the valuation) and the value of capitalised earnings (for the
remaining two thirds).

We compared the book value of the investments in subsidiaries as at
year-end 2016 to the companies’ valuations as calculated by
Management.

We compared the underlying value of the net as-sets with the value
of the shareholders’ equity of the company concerned. We compared
the earnings used for the capitalised earnings estimate with the prior
year’s figures and with the actual figures. The capitalisation rate
used was checked against country-specific long-term interest rate
forecasts and a company-specific risk premium. 

Based on our results-oriented audit procedures, we obtained
adequate assurance with regard to the impairment testing of the
investments in subsidiaries.
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website of EXPERTsuisse: → http://expertsuisse.ch/en/audit-report-for-public-companies. This
description forms part of our auditor’s report.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

In accordance with article 728a paragraph 1 item 3 CO and Swiss Auditing Standard 890, we confirm that
an internal control system exists which has been designed for the preparation of financial statements
according to the instructions of the Board of Directors.

We further confirm that the proposed appropriation of available earnings complies with Swiss law and the
company’s articles of incorporation. We recommend that the financial statements submitted to you be
approved.

PricewaterhouseCoopers Ltd

Stefan Räbsamen
Audit expert

Auditor in charge

Roman Uehli
Audit expert

Zurich, 17 February 2017

Investor information

including the overall materiality for the financial statements as a whole as set out in the table below.
These, together with qualitative considerations, helped us to determine the scope of our audit and the
nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures and to evaluate the effect of misstatements, both
individually and in aggregate, on the financial statements as a whole.

Report on key audit matters based on the Circular 1/2015 of the Federal Audit Oversight
Authority

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our
audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of
our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Valuation of investments in subsidiaries

Responsibilities of the Board of Directors for the financial statements

The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements in accordance with
the provisions of Swiss law and the company’s articles of incorporation, and for such internal control as
the Board of Directors determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the entity’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the
entity or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with Swiss law and Swiss Auditing Standards will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located at the

   

Overall materiality  CHF 2’900’000

How we determined it  0.2% of total assets

Rationale for the materialitybenchmark
applied  

We chose total assets as the benchmark because, in our view, it is a relevant benchmarkagainst which
a holding company can be as-sessed, and it is a generally accepted benchmark for materiality
considerations.

   

Key audit matter  How our audit addressed the key audit matter

As at 31 December 2016, the Company had investments in subsidiaries in the
amount of CHF 1'026 million (prior year: CHF 914 million). Of the 130
subsidiaries in 33 different countries, 75 were held directly and 55 indirectly
by the Company.

These investments are stated at acquisition cost in accordance with the
commercial accounting and financial reporting provisions of the Swiss Code
of Obligations.

The investments are valued on an individual basis. Where necessary,
impairment charges are recognised for a loss in value. Moreover, general
impairment allowances may be created in addition (see principles, in the
notes to the financial statements).

We consider the impairment testing of investments in subsidiaries as a key
audit matter due to their significance on the balance sheet.

 

Management calculates the valuation of each subsidiary on the basis
of the value of the underlying net assets at book value (for one third
of the valuation) and the value of capitalised earnings (for the
remaining two thirds).

We compared the book value of the investments in subsidiaries as at
year-end 2016 to the companies’ valuations as calculated by
Management.

We compared the underlying value of the net as-sets with the value
of the shareholders’ equity of the company concerned. We compared
the earnings used for the capitalised earnings estimate with the prior
year’s figures and with the actual figures. The capitalisation rate
used was checked against country-specific long-term interest rate
forecasts and a company-specific risk premium. 

Based on our results-oriented audit procedures, we obtained
adequate assurance with regard to the impairment testing of the
investments in subsidiaries.
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website of EXPERTsuisse: → http://expertsuisse.ch/en/audit-report-for-public-companies. This
description forms part of our auditor’s report.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

In accordance with article 728a paragraph 1 item 3 CO and Swiss Auditing Standard 890, we confirm that
an internal control system exists which has been designed for the preparation of financial statements
according to the instructions of the Board of Directors.

We further confirm that the proposed appropriation of available earnings complies with Swiss law and the
company’s articles of incorporation. We recommend that the financial statements submitted to you be
approved.

PricewaterhouseCoopers Ltd

Stefan Räbsamen
Audit expert

Auditor in charge

Roman Uehli
Audit expert

Zurich, 17 February 2017

Investor information

including the overall materiality for the financial statements as a whole as set out in the table below.
These, together with qualitative considerations, helped us to determine the scope of our audit and the
nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures and to evaluate the effect of misstatements, both
individually and in aggregate, on the financial statements as a whole.

Report on key audit matters based on the Circular 1/2015 of the Federal Audit Oversight
Authority

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our
audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of
our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Valuation of investments in subsidiaries

Responsibilities of the Board of Directors for the financial statements

The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements in accordance with
the provisions of Swiss law and the company’s articles of incorporation, and for such internal control as
the Board of Directors determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the entity’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the
entity or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with Swiss law and Swiss Auditing Standards will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located at the

   

Overall materiality  CHF 2’900’000

How we determined it  0.2% of total assets

Rationale for the materialitybenchmark
applied  

We chose total assets as the benchmark because, in our view, it is a relevant benchmarkagainst which
a holding company can be as-sessed, and it is a generally accepted benchmark for materiality
considerations.

   

Key audit matter  How our audit addressed the key audit matter

As at 31 December 2016, the Company had investments in subsidiaries in the
amount of CHF 1'026 million (prior year: CHF 914 million). Of the 130
subsidiaries in 33 different countries, 75 were held directly and 55 indirectly
by the Company.

These investments are stated at acquisition cost in accordance with the
commercial accounting and financial reporting provisions of the Swiss Code
of Obligations.

The investments are valued on an individual basis. Where necessary,
impairment charges are recognised for a loss in value. Moreover, general
impairment allowances may be created in addition (see principles, in the
notes to the financial statements).

We consider the impairment testing of investments in subsidiaries as a key
audit matter due to their significance on the balance sheet.

 

Management calculates the valuation of each subsidiary on the basis
of the value of the underlying net assets at book value (for one third
of the valuation) and the value of capitalised earnings (for the
remaining two thirds).

We compared the book value of the investments in subsidiaries as at
year-end 2016 to the companies’ valuations as calculated by
Management.

We compared the underlying value of the net as-sets with the value
of the shareholders’ equity of the company concerned. We compared
the earnings used for the capitalised earnings estimate with the prior
year’s figures and with the actual figures. The capitalisation rate
used was checked against country-specific long-term interest rate
forecasts and a company-specific risk premium. 

Based on our results-oriented audit procedures, we obtained
adequate assurance with regard to the impairment testing of the
investments in subsidiaries.
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Investor information

Share information

1 In 2016, as a dividend of CHF 20 out of retained earnings. In 2015, as a dividend out of retained earnings. In 2014, as a dividend out of retained earnings and reserves from

capital contributions. In 2013, as a par value reduction and as a dividend out of reserves from capital contributions. In 2012, as a dividend out of reserves from capital

contributions.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Swiss GAAP FER since the
beginning of 2013. Prior-year figures have been adjusted accordingly.

Ticker symbols
Telekurs, Dow Jones (DJT): FI-N
Reuters: FGEZn

Security number: 175230 
ISIN: CH0001752309 
Cedel/Euroclear Common Code: XS008592691

Investor information

  2016  2015  2014  2013  2012

           
Share capital           

           

Number of shares as of 31 December           

Registered shares  4'100'898  4'100'898  4'100'898  4'100'898  4'100'898

Thereof entitled to dividend  4'100'898  4'100'898  4'100'898  4'100'898  4'100'898

           
Number of registered shareholders  12'651  14'005  13'446  12'269  14'212

           

Share prices in CHF           

Registered share           

Highest (intraday)  901  739  738  648  451

Lowest (intraday)  601  524  494.75  363  302

Closing as of 31 December  834  679  629  628  368

           

Earnings in CHF           

Per registered share  53  46  45  34  32

           
Price-earnings ratio  16  15  14  18  11

           

Market capitalization as of 31 December           

CHF million  3'420  2'785  2'579  2'573  1'509

As % of sales  91  76  68  68  41

As % of equity attributable to shareholders of Georg
Fischer Ltd  296  258  244  275  161

           

Cash flow from operating activities in CHF           

Per registered share  98  80  61  76  56

           
Equity attributable to shareholders of 
Georg Fischer Ltd in CHF           

Per registered share  283  264  259  229  229

           
Dividend paid (proposed) in CHF million 1  82  74  70  66  62

           

Dividend paid (proposed) in CHF           

Per registered share 1  20  18  17  16  15

           
Pay-out ratio in %  38  39  38  47  47

Investor information

Share price 2012–2016

Market capitalization, earnings per share
The market capitalization stood at CHF 3ʼ420 million on 31 December 2016. Earnings per share is
CHF  53 (previous year: CHF 46). 

Proposed dividend payment
At the Annual Shareholders’ Meeting, the Board of Directors will propose the payment out of retained
earnings of a dividend in the amount of CHF  20 per registered share.

Significant shareholders
As of 31 December 2016, no shareholder or shareholder group had voting rights in excess of 5%. The
BlackRock Group, held directly or indirectly by BlackRock, Inc., New York (USA), Norges Bank (the Central
Bank of Norway), Oslo (Norway), and the UBS Fund Management (Switzerland) AG, Basel (Switzerland), had
voting rights between 3% and 5%.

56 disclosure notifications were filed in the year under review: 52 in relation to the BlackRock Group,
held directly or indirectly by BlackRock, Inc., New York (USA), three in relation to Norges Bank (the
Central Bank of Norway), Oslo (Norway), and one in relation to LSV Asset Management, Chicago (USA).

Disclosure notifications pertaining to shareholdings in Georg Fischer Ltd that were filed with Georg
Fischer Ltd and the SIX Swiss Exchange are published on the latter’s electronic publication platform and
can be accessed via the following link:
→ www.six-exchange-regulation.com/en/home/publications/significant-shareholders.html

Structure of shareholders as of 31 December 2016

Investor information

Number of shares  
Number of

shareholders  Number of shares %

     

1–100  10'681  8.4%

101–1'000  1'748  11.4%

1'001–10'000  201  11.1%

10'001–100'000  17  11.1%

> 100'000  4  17.9%

Shares not registered in share register  -  40.1%

Total  12'651  100.0%
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Investor information

Share information

1 In 2016, as a dividend of CHF 20 out of retained earnings. In 2015, as a dividend out of retained earnings. In 2014, as a dividend out of retained earnings and reserves from

capital contributions. In 2013, as a par value reduction and as a dividend out of reserves from capital contributions. In 2012, as a dividend out of reserves from capital

contributions.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Swiss GAAP FER since the
beginning of 2013. Prior-year figures have been adjusted accordingly.

Ticker symbols
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Security number: 175230 
ISIN: CH0001752309 
Cedel/Euroclear Common Code: XS008592691

Investor information

  2016  2015  2014  2013  2012

           
Share capital           

           

Number of shares as of 31 December           

Registered shares  4'100'898  4'100'898  4'100'898  4'100'898  4'100'898

Thereof entitled to dividend  4'100'898  4'100'898  4'100'898  4'100'898  4'100'898

           
Number of registered shareholders  12'651  14'005  13'446  12'269  14'212

           

Share prices in CHF           

Registered share           

Highest (intraday)  901  739  738  648  451

Lowest (intraday)  601  524  494.75  363  302

Closing as of 31 December  834  679  629  628  368

           

Earnings in CHF           

Per registered share  53  46  45  34  32

           
Price-earnings ratio  16  15  14  18  11

           

Market capitalization as of 31 December           

CHF million  3'420  2'785  2'579  2'573  1'509

As % of sales  91  76  68  68  41

As % of equity attributable to shareholders of Georg
Fischer Ltd  296  258  244  275  161

           

Cash flow from operating activities in CHF           

Per registered share  98  80  61  76  56

           
Equity attributable to shareholders of 
Georg Fischer Ltd in CHF           

Per registered share  283  264  259  229  229

           
Dividend paid (proposed) in CHF million 1  82  74  70  66  62

           

Dividend paid (proposed) in CHF           

Per registered share 1  20  18  17  16  15

           
Pay-out ratio in %  38  39  38  47  47

Investor information

Share price 2012–2016

Market capitalization, earnings per share
The market capitalization stood at CHF 3ʼ420 million on 31 December 2016. Earnings per share is
CHF  53 (previous year: CHF 46). 

Proposed dividend payment
At the Annual Shareholders’ Meeting, the Board of Directors will propose the payment out of retained
earnings of a dividend in the amount of CHF  20 per registered share.

Significant shareholders
As of 31 December 2016, no shareholder or shareholder group had voting rights in excess of 5%. The
BlackRock Group, held directly or indirectly by BlackRock, Inc., New York (USA), Norges Bank (the Central
Bank of Norway), Oslo (Norway), and the UBS Fund Management (Switzerland) AG, Basel (Switzerland), had
voting rights between 3% and 5%.

56 disclosure notifications were filed in the year under review: 52 in relation to the BlackRock Group,
held directly or indirectly by BlackRock, Inc., New York (USA), three in relation to Norges Bank (the
Central Bank of Norway), Oslo (Norway), and one in relation to LSV Asset Management, Chicago (USA).

Disclosure notifications pertaining to shareholdings in Georg Fischer Ltd that were filed with Georg
Fischer Ltd and the SIX Swiss Exchange are published on the latter’s electronic publication platform and
can be accessed via the following link:
→ www.six-exchange-regulation.com/en/home/publications/significant-shareholders.html

Structure of shareholders as of 31 December 2016

Investor information

Number of shares  
Number of

shareholders  Number of shares %

     

1–100  10'681  8.4%

101–1'000  1'748  11.4%

1'001–10'000  201  11.1%

10'001–100'000  17  11.1%

> 100'000  4  17.9%

Shares not registered in share register  -  40.1%

Total  12'651  100.0%
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Investor information

Five-year overview of the Corporation 

1 In 2012, change of definition for GF Piping Systems.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Swiss GAAP FER since the beginning of 2013.

Prior-year figures have been adjusted accordingly.

CHF million  2016  2015  2014  2013  2012

           

Order intake  3'749  3'662  3'836  3'795  3'691

Orders on hand at year-end 1  614  612  634  577  565

Income statement           

Sales  3'744  3'640  3'795  3'766  3'720

EBITDA  443  422  399  380  351

Operating result (EBIT)  311  296  274  251  222

Net profit/loss  225  198  195  145  138

Cash flow           

Cash flow from operating activities  400  328  248  309  230

Depreciation on tangible fixed assets  126  122  122  126  125

Amortization on intangible assets  6  4  3  3  4

Additions to property, plant, and equipment  –174  –167  –152  –130  –132

Cash flow from acquisitions 
and divestitures  –96  –2  –20  –66  –80

Free cash flow before acquisitions/divestitures  231  190  110  174  99

Free cash flow  135  188  90  108  19

Balance sheet           

Current assets  2'024  1'934  1'801  1'989  1'584

Non-current assets  1'178  1'149  1'188  1'137  1'080

Assets  3'202  3'083  2'989  3'126  2'664

Current liabilities  1'067  1'221  981  1'282  839

Non-current liabilities  935  732  904  866  846

Equity  1'200  1'130  1'104  978  979

Invested capital (IC)  1'333  1'279  1'354  1'224  1'217

Net debt  214  238  354  352  334

Asset structure           

– Current assets %  63  63  60  64  59

– Non-current assets %  37  37  40  36  41

Capital structure           

– Current liabilities %  34  39  33  41  31

– Non-current liabilities %  29  24  30  28  32

– Equity %  37  37  37  31  37

Key figures           

Return on equity (ROE) %  19.3  17.7  18.7  14.8  14.2

Return on invested capital (ROIC) %  19.3  18.9  17.9  16.7  15.7

Return on sales (EBIT margin) % 2  8.3  8.1  7.2  6.7  6.0

Asset turnover  2.9  2.8  2.9  3.0  3.2

Cash flow from operating activities 
in % of sales  10.7  9.0  6.5  8.2  6.2

Employees           

Employees at year-end  14'808  14'424  14'140  14'066  13'412

Europe  8'845  8'783  8'676  8'548  8'871

– Thereof Germany  3'312  3'382  3'383  3'220  3'351

– Thereof Switzerland  2'700  2'642  2'686  2'539  2'577

– Thereof Austria  1'885  1'830  1'719  1'926  2'059

– Thereof Rest of Europe  948  929  888  863  884

Asia  3'713  3'502  3'455  3'468  3'226

– Thereof China  3'216  3'131  3'085  3'073  2'839

Americas  1'348  1'262  1'259  1'290  1'259

Rest of world  902  877  750  760  56
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Investor information

Five-year overview of the Corporation 

1 In 2012, change of definition for GF Piping Systems.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Swiss GAAP FER since the beginning of 2013.

Prior-year figures have been adjusted accordingly.

CHF million  2016  2015  2014  2013  2012

           

Order intake  3'749  3'662  3'836  3'795  3'691

Orders on hand at year-end 1  614  612  634  577  565

Income statement           

Sales  3'744  3'640  3'795  3'766  3'720

EBITDA  443  422  399  380  351

Operating result (EBIT)  311  296  274  251  222

Net profit/loss  225  198  195  145  138

Cash flow           

Cash flow from operating activities  400  328  248  309  230

Depreciation on tangible fixed assets  126  122  122  126  125

Amortization on intangible assets  6  4  3  3  4

Additions to property, plant, and equipment  –174  –167  –152  –130  –132

Cash flow from acquisitions 
and divestitures  –96  –2  –20  –66  –80

Free cash flow before acquisitions/divestitures  231  190  110  174  99

Free cash flow  135  188  90  108  19

Balance sheet           

Current assets  2'024  1'934  1'801  1'989  1'584

Non-current assets  1'178  1'149  1'188  1'137  1'080

Assets  3'202  3'083  2'989  3'126  2'664

Current liabilities  1'067  1'221  981  1'282  839

Non-current liabilities  935  732  904  866  846

Equity  1'200  1'130  1'104  978  979

Invested capital (IC)  1'333  1'279  1'354  1'224  1'217

Net debt  214  238  354  352  334

Asset structure           

– Current assets %  63  63  60  64  59

– Non-current assets %  37  37  40  36  41

Capital structure           

– Current liabilities %  34  39  33  41  31

– Non-current liabilities %  29  24  30  28  32

– Equity %  37  37  37  31  37

Key figures           

Return on equity (ROE) %  19.3  17.7  18.7  14.8  14.2

Return on invested capital (ROIC) %  19.3  18.9  17.9  16.7  15.7

Return on sales (EBIT margin) % 2  8.3  8.1  7.2  6.7  6.0

Asset turnover  2.9  2.8  2.9  3.0  3.2

Cash flow from operating activities 
in % of sales  10.7  9.0  6.5  8.2  6.2

Employees           

Employees at year-end  14'808  14'424  14'140  14'066  13'412

Europe  8'845  8'783  8'676  8'548  8'871

– Thereof Germany  3'312  3'382  3'383  3'220  3'351

– Thereof Switzerland  2'700  2'642  2'686  2'539  2'577

– Thereof Austria  1'885  1'830  1'719  1'926  2'059

– Thereof Rest of Europe  948  929  888  863  884

Asia  3'713  3'502  3'455  3'468  3'226

– Thereof China  3'216  3'131  3'085  3'073  2'839

Americas  1'348  1'262  1'259  1'290  1'259

Rest of world  902  877  750  760  56
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